
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Agenda and Reports 
 

for the meeting of 
 

THE COUNTY COUNCIL 
 

to be held on 
 
 

19 MARCH 2024 
 

@SCCdemocracy 
 



(i) 

 

 



(ii) 

 

 

Woodhatch Place 
Reigate 
Surrey 
 
Monday, 11 March 2024  
 
 
TO THE MEMBERS OF SURREY COUNTY COUNCIL 
 
 
SUMMONS TO MEETING 
 
You are hereby summoned to attend the meeting of the Council to be held at Woodhatch 
Place, 11 Cockshot Hill, Reigate, Surrey, RH2 8EF, on Tuesday, 19 March 2024, beginning 
at 10.00 am, for the purpose of transacting the business specified in the Agenda set out 
overleaf. 
 
 
LEIGH WHITEHOUSE 
Interim Chief Executive 
 
Note 1:  For those Members wishing to participate, Prayers will be said at 9.50am.  Rabbi 
Alex Goldberg, Dean of Religious Life and Belief at the University of Surrey, has kindly 
consented to officiate.  If any Members wish to take time for reflection, meditation, alternative 
worship or other such practice prior to the start of the meeting, alternative space can be 
arranged on request by contacting Democratic Services.  
 
There will be a very short interval between the conclusion of Prayers and the start of the 
meeting to enable those Members and Officers who do not wish to take part in Prayers to 
enter the Council Chamber and join the meeting. 
 
Note 2:  This meeting may be filmed for live or subsequent broadcast via the Council's 
internet site - at the start of the meeting the Chair will confirm if all or part of the meeting is 
being filmed.  The images and sound recording may be used for training purposes within the 
Council.  
 
Generally the public seating areas are not filmed.  However by entering the meeting room 
and using the public seating area, you are consenting to being filmed and to the possible use 
of those images and sound recordings for webcasting and/or training purposes. 
 
If you have any queries regarding this, please contact the representative of Legal and 
Democratic Services at the meeting. 
 

 
If you would like a copy of this agenda or the attached papers in another format, e.g.  
large print or braille, or another language, please email Amelia Christopher on  
amelia.christopher@surreycc.gov.uk 
 
This meeting will be held in public. If you would like to attend and you have any  
special requirements, please contact Amelia Christopher on 07929 725663 or via the 
email address above. 

 

mailto:amelia.christopher@surreycc.gov.uk


(iii) 

 

 

 

1  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 
The Chair to report apologies for absence. 
 

 

2  MINUTES 
 
To confirm the minutes of the meeting of the Council held on 6 February 
2024.  
 

(Pages 9 
- 44) 

3  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
All Members present are required to declare, at this point in the meeting or 
as soon as possible thereafter  

(i) Any disclosable pecuniary interests and / or  

(ii) Other interests arising under the Code of Conduct in respect of any 

item(s) of business being considered at this meeting 

NOTES: 

• Members are reminded that they must not participate in any item 

where they have a disclosable pecuniary interest 

• As well as an interest of the Member, this includes any interest, of 

which the Member is aware, that relates to the Member’s spouse or 

civil partner (or any person with whom the Member is living as a 

spouse or civil partner) 

• Members with a significant personal interest may participate in the 

discussion and vote on that matter unless that interest could be 

reasonably regarded as prejudicial. 

 

4  CHAIR'S ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
Welcome 
I am sure that I am not the only one who is pleased to see daffodils in 
bloom and more daylight. Spring is on its way, a sign of new 
beginnings, and that is especially the case for Surrey. We will come 
together next month for our Extraordinary Council Meeting, and I invite 
you to the garden room following the meeting for tea, coffee and cake. 
I hope to see you all there. 
 
Charity Visits 
Since our last meeting, I have been fortunate enough to be out in the 
county visiting some of Surrey’s charities and recognising the hard 
work that goes into each of these charitable organisations. In February 
I visited the Hashim Welfare Hospital, a charity hospital providing the 
relief of sickness in rural Pakistan, in particular by assisting in the 
provision and management of a hospital. I also paid a visit to the 
Grange Centre for people with disabilities. The Grange does a 
tremendous job, supporting people with disabilities to lead independent 
and fulfilling lives. I have seen firsthand the incredible difference these 
charities make in their communities and to Surrey’s residents. I will be 
continuing to visit charities over the course of the year in line with my 
theme, ‘celebrating diverse communities’ and I look forward to sharing 
more of the work taking place in the county with you.   

 



(iv) 

 

 

 
Ukraine 
On Saturday 24 February I stood at Jubilee Square in Woking to 
commemorate two years of Russia’s invasion of Ukraine. Even now, it 
is still hard to believe that in 2022, the world entered an unprecedented 
era, irreversibly altering the lives of Ukrainians and countless others 
across the globe. Over these challenging two years and as we start the 
third year, the resilience of the Ukrainian people continues to shine 
through. 
 
Openings 
One of the many, enjoyable tasks undertaken in the role as the Chair 
are grand openings, and this month I had the pleasure of attending the 
official opening of Heathside School in Walton-on-Thames who were 
also lucky enough to have His Royal Highness The Duke of Gloucester 
in attendance.  
 
I welcomed residents to Blanchman’s Farm Nature Reserve who, after 
being granted £119,000 by Your Fund Surrey, installed a trackway 
around its reserve. Nature reserves have historically been very hard to 
access for everyone and the previous trackway had become unfit for 
purpose. The new track has made the reserve completely accessible 
for people of all abilities and circumstances, just as it should be. It was 
a privilege to officially open the track and thank every member of the 
team for all their efforts in bringing the project to life, a very proud 
moment for the reserve and for the county. 

 
International Women’s Day 
8 March marked International Women’s Day 2024, and the theme for 
this year is ‘Invest in women: Accelerate progress’. As a male Chair, I 
feel I have an even greater duty to ensure woman are celebrated.  
 
The world is facing many crises, ranging from geopolitical conflicts to 
soaring poverty levels and the escalating impacts of climate change. 
These challenges can only be addressed by solutions that empower 
women. By investing in women and championing gender equality, we 
can spark change and speed the transition towards a healthier, safer, 
and more equal world, where everyone in society can thrive, creating a 
world of boundless opportunity and equal empowerment for all. 
 

5  LEADER'S STATEMENT 
 
The Leader to make a statement.  
 
There will be an opportunity for Members to ask questions and/or make 
comments.  
 

 

6  MEMBERS' QUESTION TIME 
 
1. The Leader of the Council, the Deputy Leader or the appropriate 

Member of the Cabinet or the chairman of a committee to answer 
any questions on any matter relating to the powers and duties of the 
County Council, or which affects the county.  

(Note: Notice of questions in respect of the above item on the 
agenda must be given in writing, preferably by e-mail, to 
Democratic Services by 12 noon on Wednesday 13 March 
2024).  

 



(v) 

 

 

 
2. Cabinet Member and Deputy Cabinet Member Briefings on their 

portfolios.  
 
These will be circulated by email to all Members prior to the County 
Council meeting, together with the Members’ questions and 
responses. 
 
There will be an opportunity for Members to ask questions. 

 

7  STATEMENTS BY MEMBERS 
 
Any Member may make a statement at the meeting on a local issue of 
current or future concern. 
 
(Note:  Notice of statements must be given in writing, preferably by e-
mail, to Democratic Services by 12 noon on Monday 18 March 2024). 
 

 

8  ORIGINAL MOTIONS 
 
Item 8 (i) 

 

Robert Evans OBE (Stanwell and Stanwell Moor) to move under 

standing order 11 as follows: 

 

This Council believes that: 

 

The current system for local government finance is no longer fit for 

purpose.  

 

This Council resolves to: 

 

Call on the next government to bring in a fairer and more robust system to 

replace Council Tax.  

 

9  SELECT COMMITTEE FEEDBACK ON A REFERRED MOTION: 
'ADVERTISING & SPONSORSHIP POLICY' 
 
To provide feedback from the Communities, Environment and Highways 
Select Committee’s Greener Futures Reference Group on the Council 
motion titled ‘Advertising & Sponsorship Policy’ as requested by the 
Council. 
 

(Pages 
45 - 54) 

10  ESTABLISHMENT OF A JOINT HEALTH OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE (FRIMLEY PARK HOSPITAL) 
 
To agree the Terms of Reference and membership of the Joint Health 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee (Frimley Park Hospital).  
 

(Pages 
55 - 62) 

11  SELECT COMMITTEES' REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
For Members to note the headline activity of the Council’s overview and 
scrutiny function in the period October 2023 to February 2024 asking 
questions of Scrutiny Chairs as necessary. 
 
 

 

(Pages 
63 - 66) 



(vi) 

 

 

12  ANNUAL REPORT TO COUNCIL - MEMBER DEVELOPMENT 
 
This report provides an annual overview of the council’s approach to 
member development, to provide assurance that the current approach is 
effective and equitable. 
 

(Pages 
67 - 72) 

13  REPORT OF THE CABINET 
 
To receive the report of the meeting of the Cabinet held on 27 February 
2024. 
 

(Pages 
73 - 78) 

14  MINUTES OF CABINET MEETINGS 
 
Any matters within the minutes of the Cabinet’s meetings, and not 
otherwise brought to the Council’s attention in the Cabinet’s report, may be 
the subject of questions and statements by Members upon notice being 
given to Democratic Services by 12 noon on Monday 18 March 2024.  
 

 

 

(Pages 
79 - 90) 

 
 
 

MOBILE TECHNOLOGY AND FILMING – ACCEPTABLE USE 
 
Members of the public and the press may use social media or mobile devices in silent mode 
during meetings.  Public Wi-Fi is available; please ask the committee manager for details.  
 
Anyone is permitted to film, record or take photographs at Council meetings.  Please liaise 
with the committee manager prior to the start of the meeting so that the meeting can be 
made aware of any filming taking place.   
 
The use of mobile devices, including for the purpose of recording or filming a meeting, is 
subject to no interruptions, distractions or interference being caused to any Council 
equipment or any general disturbance to proceedings. The Chairman may ask for mobile 
devices to be switched off in these circumstances. 
 
 
Thank you for your co-operation. 



This page is intentionally left blank



223 
 

MINUTES OF THE BUDGET MEETING OF THE COUNTY COUNCIL HELD AT  
WOODHATCH PLACE, 11 COCKSHOT HILL, REIGATE, SURREY, RH2 8EF, ON 6 
FEBRUARY 2024 COMMENCING AT 10.00 AM, THE COUNCIL BEING 
CONSTITUTED AS FOLLOWS:         

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
*absent 
r = Remote Attendance 

 

Saj Hussain (Chair) 
 Tim Hall (Vice-Chair) 

 
Maureen Attewell 
Ayesha Azad 
Catherine Baart 

    Steve Bax 
       John Beckett 

Jordan Beech   
    Luke Bennett 

       Amanda Boote 
       Dennis Booth 
       Harry Boparai 

*   Liz Bowes 
     Natalie Bramhall 
     Helyn Clack 
    Stephen Cooksey 

       Clare Curran 
    Nick Darby 
    Fiona Davidson 

       Paul Deach 
    Kevin Deanus 

       Jonathan Essex 
    Robert Evans OBE 

       Chris Farr 
    Paul Follows  

Will Forster  
    John Furey 
    Matt Furniss  
    Angela Goodwin  
    Jeffrey Gray 
r   David Harmer 

  *   Nick Harrison 
    Edward Hawkins 
    Marisa Heath 
    Trefor Hogg 
    Robert Hughes 

Jonathan Hulley 
     Rebecca Jennings-Evans 

        Frank Kelly 
     Riasat Khan 

Robert King 
 
     

 

    Eber Kington 
    Rachael Lake BEM 
    Victor Lewanski 

David Lewis (Cobham) 
    David Lewis (Camberley West) 
    Scott Lewis 
    Andy Lynch  

Andy MacLeod  
    Ernest Mallett MBE 
    Michaela Martin 
    Jan Mason 
    Steven McCormick 
    Cameron McIntosh 
    Julia McShane  
    Sinead Mooney 
    Carla Morson 
    Bernie Muir 

Mark Nuti 
    John O’Reilly 

Tim Oliver 
Rebecca Paul 

    George Potter 
Catherine Powell 

    Penny Rivers 
*   John Robini 
*   Becky Rush  
    Joanne Sexton 
    Lance Spencer  
    Lesley Steeds 
    Mark Sugden 
    Richard Tear 
    Ashley Tilling 

Chris Townsend 
Liz Townsend 

    Denise Turner-Stewart 
    Hazel Watson 

Jeremy Webster 
    Buddhi Weerasinghe 
    Fiona White 
    Keith Witham 
 
 

Page 9

Item 2



224 
 

1/24 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   [Item 1] 
 

Apologies for absence were received from Nick Harrison, David Harmer (remote), John 
Robini, Becky Rush. 

 
2/24 MINUTES   [Item 2] 

  
The minutes of the meeting of the County Council held on 12 December 2023 were 
submitted, confirmed and signed. 

 
3/24 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   [Item 3] 

 
Rachael Lake BEM declared a non-pecuniary interest noting that her son works for Surrey 
County Council. 
 
Keith Witham declared a non-pecuniary interest noting that his daughter works for Surrey 
County Council in the Finance department. 
 
Bernie Muir declared a non-pecuniary interest noting that her son works for Surrey 
Choices.  
 

4/24 CHAIR’S ANNOUNCEMENTS   [Item 4] 
 

The Chair: 
 

• Congratulated the Surrey residents who were honoured in His Majesty The King’s 
New Year Honours; including Surrey County Councillor Rachael Lake, who received 
the British Empire Medal (BEM) for services to the community in Walton-on-
Thames.  

• Reported the death of former County Councillor Daphne Plaskow, she represented 
the Walton-on-Thames division between 1985-1989.  

• Highlighted the social media drop-in session for Members with the Communications 
and Engagement team. 

• Noted his thanks to the Chief Executive, Joanna Killian who would be leaving Surrey 
County Council on 6 March, and wished her luck in her new position as the Chief 
Executive of the Local Government Association.  

• Celebrated the launch of the Super Access service at Horley Library.  

• Noted that the rest of his announcements could be found in the agenda. 
 

5/24 2024/25 FINAL BUDGET AND MEDIUM-TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY TO 2028/29   
[Item 5] 

 
The Leader presented the 2024/25 Final Budget and Medium-Term Financial Strategy to 
2028/29 and made a statement in support of the proposed budget.  

 
A copy of the Leader’s budget statement is attached as Appendix A.  
 
Edward Hawkins arrived at 10.22 am. 
 
Each of the Minority Group Leaders (Will Forster, Catherine Powell, Jonathan Essex and 
Robert Evans OBE) were invited to speak on the budget proposals.  

 
Key points made by Will Forster were that: 

 

Page 10



225 
 

• Thanked the Leader and officers for their hard work on the budget despite the cuts 
to local government by the Government, high borrowing costs, cost of living 
pressures and the short-term funding settlement. 

• Noted that councils had to do more for less having lost one quarter of their funding 
in the past eight years, there was a £5.8 billion shortfall in the coming financial year. 

• Called for fairer funding, stressed that the Government cannot continue to neglect 
local government, it would leave crises for years to come.  

• Feared that the budget repeated past failures in not spending money properly and 
with multiple inefficiencies. 

• Noted disappointment in the MySurrey project with a £10 million overspend, 
equivalent to residents paying an additional 1% on Council Tax.  

• Noted that the Council spent £500,000 on compensation for pothole damage and 
redress payments concerning Education, Health and Care Plans (EHCPs) because 
it did not get things right the first time; that money could have funded Short Breaks 
services. 

• Noted that the Council spent at least £19,000 in legal fees regarding the High 
Court’s Judicial Review into the Council's decision not to house a child in need, that 
money could have been spent on supporting vulnerable residents. 

• Noted that whilst the Council would use some reserves to bolster its services it had 
£150 million in reserves, noted that it was difficult to explain that amount of money 
not being spent on potholes or Home to School Transport.  

• Queried how viable and realistic the budget is as last year the Council did not 
achieve all the planned efficiencies. 
 

Key points made by Catherine Powell were that: 
 

• Acknowledged that the Leader had worked hard to lobby the Government for greater 
funding for local authorities, yet the response had been frustrating. 

• Noted that the Council needed to be realistic in its approach and stressed that the 
greatest need should be targeted, focusing on those being left behind.  

• Noted that due to the long-term lack of investment in targeted prevention, early 
intervention and support, need has escalated in Children’s Services and Adult Social 
Care increasing demand for crisis and statutory services, despite that there had 
been a decrease in public health funding for local government. 

• Noted that nationally, family hubs were being rolled out in areas of high deprivation, 
but there was nothing in Surrey. 

• Noted that in terms of their education it would take children from areas of high 
deprivation ten years to recover from the impacts of the pandemic; children with 
Special Educational Needs and Disabilities (SEND) were impacted badly by delays 
to the EHCP system, shortages of specialist provision and support staff. 

• Noted that children in the poorest areas were ten times more likely to be taken into 
care and had poorer life prospects. 

• Welcomed the additional £5 million for children's prevention services but it was not 
adequate or targeted enough, there was a forecast overspend of £16.1 million 
regarding children's social care places which needed to be looked at. 

• Welcomed the Intensive Family Support Service, but one centre in each borough 
was inadequate, satellite hubs were needed in areas of deprivation. 

• Noted that the best option for Surrey children would be a Surrey placement with 
foster carers or in children’s homes; the Council must listen to its foster carers on 
what they believe would make a difference to retention and recruitment. 

• Noted that there had been a historic lack of investment in Surrey's key 
infrastructure, with reversals of bringing places back into Surrey's control. 

Page 11



226 
 

• Noted that in 2023, the Council’s debt was £0.6 billion and that was set to treble 
over the next five years, £100 million would need to be found annually out of 
revenue to service that debt.  

• Noted that over five years the Council would borrow £300 million to maintain the 
highway network, yet gaps remained regarding the walking and cycling routes. 

• Noted that the Safety Valve Agreement for the high needs block was based on £58 
million for new SEND places, yet the Council received £8 million from the 
Government; the costs of SEND school places had risen dramatically.  

• Noted that some of the capital spending in the budget was optional like Your Fund 
Surrey, whilst the individual schemes would have a positive impact on those able to 
access them it was not a targeted scheme for areas of deprivation; spending £1 
million annually on the scheme’s debt would fund two-hundred youth centres. 

• Noted that stable revenue funding for universal services was critical in areas of high 
deprivation, including stay and play sessions, youth centres, social opportunities for 
older, poorer and isolated residents, and strength and balance classes; there was a 
constant pressure on charities to be more creative. 

• Noted that the budget amendment would help address some of the issues raised, 
providing an alternative funding stream for revenue. 

• Noted that the strategy for the budget next year must be different, work must start 
earlier on it.   

 
Key points made by Jonathan Essex were that: 

 

• Noted that yet again the Government failed to provide local government with the 
funding it needs, it was actively leaving people behind.   

• Noted that the announcement to ensure that councils have 4% more spending 
power than last year means lower government funding, compared to the 
Government’s desire for Council Tax to increase by 5%; therefore why not have a 
voluntary ask of those Surrey residents most able to pay to support those in need. 

• Noted that over three quarters of the new bus funding or £8 million was for the roll 
out of Digital Demand Responsive Transport (DDRT) to rural areas, whilst mainly 
funded by a government grant to be spent next year that would create a £11.6 
million shortfall in the budget for the year after.  

• Noted that DDRT would address social isolation only for parts of Surrey, with much 
less investment in improving existing bus services in other areas, nor integrating and 
coordinating with existing community transport. 

• Welcomed the cross-party support at the previous council meeting to bring forward 
phase two of the Freedom to Travel transformation programme into the budget, to 
better link the growing DDRT with Home to School Travel, community buses and 
NHS non-emergency patient transport; yet it was hard to see that in the budget but 
had been assured that the increased funding could be provided. 

• Noted that it was unclear how much increase there would be in bus travel through 
the extra spending on DDRT, nor was there a target; and whether DDRT was the 
most effective way to increase bus use and achieve carbon reductions.  

• Noted that the promise last year to set out the climate impact of the budget did not 
appear to have been considered. 

• Noted concern that reductions in the budget for the new family centres contract by 
5% could lead to a reduced service, there needed to be universal preventative level 
2 services for under-fives and youth provision across Surrey. 

• Queried whether the money set aside for the implementation plan regarding Vision 
Zero would be sufficient to meet that commitment by 2035, the budget implies that it 
could be achieved over ten years by introducing twenty miles per hour speed limits 
on a road by road basis. 

Page 12



227 
 

• Noted that last year the Local Government Association published its call for councils 
to lead local climate action, including through the One Public Estate retrofit 
programme, the Green Party Group’s proposed 2023 budget amendment called on 
the Council to finance that working in partnership but it was not carried. 

• Noted that if the Council can provide expertise and training to integrate the Greener 
Futures finance strategy across the public sector through an agreement to share 
services and it declares itself the lead local authority for climate change; without 
additional finance, queried what else was needed to ensure that happens. 

 
Key points made by Robert Evans OBE were that: 

 

• Echoed the thanks to the Leader and officers for the huge amount of work that had 
gone into preparing the budget.  

• Noted his thanks and congratulations to the outgoing Chief Executive, who 
performed the job in difficult circumstances admirably and with good humour.  

• Noted that all the previous budgets he had heard as a Member had been set under 
difficult economic circumstances including austerity and inept Government policies 
and budgets, and high inflation. 

• Noted prices had not fallen they had risen less sharply, the cover report noted that 
the high inflation and increasing demand for key services meant an increasing cost 
of delivering services at a faster rate than the Council’s funding. 

• Asked how the Leader succeeded in achieving the additional £11 million from the 
Treasury, yet it was a small amount compared to the Council’s £1.2 billion budget. 

• Highlighted a startling piece of information in the budget whereby paragraph 1.16 
stated that due to the annual publication of the Local Government Finance 
Settlement ‘funding remains unclear beyond 2024/25’ with decisions being 
postponed after the current Parliament and uncertainty to remain after the next 
General Election; the Council was being neglected by the Government.  

• Noted that despite the Leader saying that local government must think differently for 
it to survive, in previous years there had been efficiencies and there was little 
evidence of that different thinking this year, the budget gives little hope for those 
who believe a strong youth service is vital and the reserves should be invested.  

• Applauded the public engagement on the budget with a survey about priorities, 
which included better roads and pavements; yet that was not being delivered to his 
residents nor had gully cleaning or grass cutting. 

• Noted that the Leader highlighted the public transport for rural areas, yet the public 
transport system in urban areas was not improving with delayed buses. 

• Regarding making communities safer, whilst SFRS arrives quickly that was not true 
of the police when residents had reported antisocial behaviour; some had no 
confidence in the Police and Crime Commissioner for Surrey.  

• Noted that the budget does not give him the confidence to inform his residents that 
there are improvements ahead, the budget amendment improves it. 

 
Catherine Powell moved an amendment, presenting the following recommended 
alternative budget proposals (included in the second supplementary agenda items 5i and 
6, published on 5 February 2024), which was formally seconded by Jonathan Essex. This 
was: 

 
Recommendations 

Council is asked to approve the following budget proposals, which are aimed 
specifically at providing support for some of the most vulnerable residents in Surrey in a 
targeted way, as well as establishing an ongoing funding source to ensure future funding 
for preventative activities: 

Page 13



228 
 

1. Further investment in SEND Play and Leisure to address increased demand, 
track and address the waiting lists. 
 
Budget commitment: £0.5m additional ongoing revenue budget to enable 
providers to address increased demand due to increased numbers of children with 
EHCPs, tackle waiting lists and collate information on on-going demand for services 
to prevent escalation of need and family breakdown.  
 

2. Provide funding to support the expansion of the current pilot, where providers 
of SEND Play and Leisure or Overnight respite groups would allow parents 
and carers to fund a session or place using their personal allowances, when 
they are struggling to recruit Personal Assistants (PAs) to provide respite and 
support.  

 
Budget commitment: One-off spend of £0.05m to enable providers to create the 
additional capacity required to enable parents and carers to spend personal 
allowances on Play and Leisure or Overnight respite places / sessions where PAs 
cannot be sourced after the current pilot finishes. 

 
3. Support the implementation and roll out of the Surrey Fosters Carers Charter, 

developed alongside the Surrey Foster Carers Association, to support Foster 
Carers retention and recruitment and ensure the best possible outcomes for 
the children and young people in their care.  

Budget commitment: One-off spend of £0.3m to fund temporary additional roles 
within the Fostering Service and other engaged council services, dedicated to 
working alongside partner organisations including the Surrey Foster Carer 
Association to ensure that the Charter is fully implemented within 6 months.  
 

4. Additional support in schools for neurodiverse children, specifically those in 
areas of high deprivation. 

Budget commitment: £0.7m additional ongoing revenue budget to enable the 
service to increase the reach of existing mechanisms and add services for primary 
schools in areas of high deprivation to support neurodiverse children in mainstream 
schools.    
 

5. Additional revenue budget to create a fund to enable local communities to 
deliver Strength and Balance Classes in deprived areas and rural villages. 

Budget commitment: £0.2m additional ongoing revenue budget to support 
communities in deprived areas and rural villages with no regular bus service to 
create a fund for local communities to access, to provide strength and balance 
classes to support fall prevention and stroke rehabilitation as well as reducing social 
isolation.   
 

6. Accelerate the roll out of Technology Enabled Care 

Budget commitment: £0.25m of ongoing funding to accelerate the roll out of 
technology enabled care across Surrey.  This budget will cover further additional 
staffing for the extension of the existing scheme to cover the whole of Surrey over 
the next 2 years and to establish of an option for anyone to self-fund, at a fixed cost.   
  

7. The establishment of a fund, created through voluntary contributions from 
residents, to provide an ongoing revenue funding source for specific early 
intervention, preventative and support services for residents in most need. 
 

Page 14



229 
 

The financial impacts are either requirements for initial one-off funding sources or 
ongoing budget requirements and, if approved, would result in changes to the 
Directorate envelopes of the Childrens, Families & Lifelong Learning Directorate and 
the Adults, Wellbeing & Health Partnerships Directorate in 2024/25.  

 
Table 1. Summary of budget proposals 

 
Proposal 

2024-25 & annual 
ongoing 

revenue impact 

One-Off 
costs 

 
 

Notes 

1. Children Services: Further investment in 
SEND Play and Leisure to tackle increase in 
demand, track and address the waiting lists 
to prevent escalating need and family 
breakdown  

£500,000  Ongoing 

2. Childrens Services: Provide funding to 
support the expansion of the current pilot 
whereby personal allowances can be used 
to fund a place at a SEND Play and Leisure 
or Overnight Respite. 

 £50,000 One-off funding for 
Year 1 only 

3. Childrens Services:  Support the 
implementation and roll out of the Surrey 
Fosters Carers Charter within 6 months to 
support Foster Carers retention and 
recruitment and ensure the best possible 
outcomes for the children and young people 
in their care.  

 £300,000 One-off funding for 
Year 1 only 

4. Children’s Services:  Provide additional 
support for schools in areas of high 
deprivation for neurodiverse children in 
mainstream schools. 

£700,000  Effectiveness to be 
reviewed to determine 
strategy for Year 2 and 
beyond  

5. Adults’ Social Care:  Additional budget to 
create a fund to enable local communities to 
deliver Strength and Balance Classes. 

£200,000  On-going 

6. Adults Social Care:  Accelerate the roll out 
of Technology Enabled Care 

£250,000    

7. Voluntary Contribution Fund  
The establishment of a fund, created through 
voluntary contributions from residents, to 
provide an ongoing funding source for 
specific early intervention, preventative and 
support services for residents in most need. 

  Minimal promotional & 
administrative costs 
anticipated to set up.  
Donations to be utilised 
to provide ongoing 
financial support for 
prevention activities 
into the medium term 

 £1,650,000 £350,000  

 

In support of her budget amendment, Catherine Powell made the following points: 
 

• Noted extreme concern about the increasingly challenging financial environment 
and the urgent need for the Council to invest in effective early intervention and 
prevention, the amendment proposed that alternative funding stream. 

• Welcomed the £5 million for Children's Services, but that non-Cabinet Members 
were not aware of the proposal until it appeared in the Cabinet agenda. 

• Was horrified by the lack of additional funding for councils in the Local Government 
Finance Settlement despite the spiralling statutory service costs particularly in 

Page 15



230 
 

Children's Services and Adult Social Care; had initially tried to build the amendment 
around non-statutory services and areas not providing value for money but realised 
that there would not be enough money available. 

• Noted as there could not be additional Council Tax bands without Government 
approval, she researched the idea of setting up a voluntary contribution fund called 
the Surrey Community Contribution Scheme, to be advertised and open to all with 
disposable income to supplement the lack of local government funding.  

• Recognised that many residents already make contributions in terms of time and 
money to charities. 

• Noted that over 200,000 households in Surrey were in Bands F, G or H, if everyone 
in those households gave £10 that would raise £2 million for the voluntary 
contribution fund, if those in Band H give £100, that would also raise £2 million and 
that amount would cover the cost of the proposals in her amendment. 

• Noted that the results from the budget consultation showed that younger residents 
aged between 18 to 25 years old were most likely to prefer the Council to allocate 
resources to those in greatest need. 

• Believed that the process should begin now for the voluntary contribution fund as 
the pressures on statutory services continued to increase. 

• Acknowledged that the proposed spending recommendations might not be what 
everyone would choose, however they were formed from having listened to a broad 
range of Members and those working with the most deprived communities and 
vulnerable residents.  

• Regarding the proposal to increase SEND Play and Leisure provision, more than 
80% of the parents impacted by losing services had reported significant mental 
health pressures on the whole family since services closed in April 2023; capacity 
must be increased and waiting lists addressed to protect statutory services. 

• Noted that finding Personal Assistants for many families with SEND children was 
challenging, more must be done to help them. 

• Stressed that the Council must do more to help Surrey foster carers, the Surrey 
Fosters Carers Charter must be delivered quickly and efficiently.  

• Noted that Mindworks Surrey was not taking any referrals for neurodiverse children 
from schools or GPs, the Council must do all it can to support schools, particularly 
those in deprived areas. 

• Noted that key interventions for adults highlighted in her discussions were long-term 
funded targeted strength and balance classes which were life-changing and 
accelerating the roll out of technology enabled care.  

 
As seconder to the budget amendment, Jonathan Essex made the following points: 
 

• Welcomed the amendment’s focus on strengthening prevention and early 
intervention spending in Children's Services and Adult Social Care to mitigate 
expensive costs later, as prevention’s long-term benefits were often overlooked.  

• Referring to the proposal to support the roll out of the Surrey Foster Carers Charter, 
the Council had underspent on foster carers by £1 million compared to an 
overspend on other placement types reflected in the £20 million budget pressures 
next year to provide homes in Surrey for Looked After Children and Care Leavers.  

• Noted that the overspend was due to a reduction of in-house foster carers despite 
an increase in their allowances last year, it was a tragedy that the Council like many 
other local authorities, could not find enough places in Surrey, the proposal 
therefore was important as it prioritised sufficiency.  

• Noted that the Council was building new children's homes in Surrey to address 
some of the 3,000 national shortage of places, that would be vital as all the public 
sector services in Surrey could collaborate under the Council’s guidance.  

Page 16



231 
 

• Noted that the Council was becoming more reliant on foster carers procured through 
private agencies at double the cost and who were far away from Surrey, a 
transformation programme for foster carers was needed, starting with a commitment 
to work more closely and listen better to the needs of the existing foster carers and 
the Surrey Foster Carers Association. 

• Noted that the voluntary contribution fund for those most able to pay was not a tax, it 
provided people with an opportunity to supplement their Council Tax, as people trust 
that councils know where the most need is. 

 
The Leader did not accept the budget amendment and therefore the budget amendment 
was open for debate. 
 
The Leader of the Council spoke on the budget amendment, making the following points: 
 

• Welcomed that it was acknowledged that the Council and the administration were 
focused on prevention and early intervention, by 2027 £165 million would be spent 
on preventative activity. 

• Noted that £535 million of the capital expenditure was on preventative activity such 
as building homes for children and creating more specialist independent living 
facilities for elderly residents.  

• Noted that the amendment had not been to the Children, Families, Lifelong Learning 
and Culture (CFLLC) Select Committee, nor had there been a conversation with its 
Chair or the Executive Director - Children, Families and Lifelong Learning. 

• Asked yesterday if the proposer would withdraw the amendment so it could be 
reviewed by the CFLLC Select Committee which can choose to make 
recommendations to the Cabinet, along with looking at the proposals from the 
Executive Director - CFL for how to spend that additional funding from the 
Government; reiterated the need for a review by the select committee. 

• Noted that there had been seventeen select committee budget meetings and the 
proposer had chaired five Budget Task Group meetings and officers had spent 
hours going through the detail, so did not understand why the amendment came 
now. 

• Noted that in November 2023 the Cabinet received the draft budget and there had 
not been representation from the opposition, in January 2024 the Cabinet received 
the final budget yet the proposals of the amendment were not included in the 
recommendations from the Budget Task Group.  

• Regarding the voluntary contribution fund, urged the proposer to think seriously 
about the appropriateness of asking residents in certain Council Tax bands to make 
that contribution, that moral pressure was disrespectful to them and all they do in 
terms of supporting charities with their time and their money.  

 
Sixteen Members spoke on the budget amendment:  

 

• Endorsed what the Leader had said about ensuring that the amount proposed on 
Children’s Services and Adult Social Care can be scrutinised properly by the select 
committees.  

• Described the voluntary contribution fund as a resident tax, it was not the Council’s 
responsibility to act as a charitable organisation, residents would feel insulted as 
they already pay their Council Tax and expect services to be delivered. 

• Noted that residents’ money would be spent to publicise the voluntary contribution 
fund to ask residents to give the Council money. 

• Noted that the voluntary contribution fund does not align with the Fundraising 
Regulator’s Code of Fundraising Practice which aims to develop a culture of 
honesty, openness and respect between fundraisers and the public, as it is not a 

Page 17



232 
 

respectful approach as it singles out residents based on the value of their properties, 
it applies pressure and does not treat the public fairly.  

• Noted that the Community Foundation for Surrey voluntarily distributes over £2 
million annually to Surrey beneficiaries, the voluntary contribution fund is divisive and 
overlooks the financial contributions made by Surrey’s wealthy residents to voluntary 
and charitable organisations. 

• Had called for additional Council Tax bands to be established in Surrey to cover 
higher value properties, yet that could only be granted by the Government.  

• Noted that the highest value property in Surrey was on sale for £17 million, its 
Council Tax was £3,500 a year or 0.0002% of the value, whilst some of the lowest 
value properties at £160,000 had a Council Tax of £1,367 or forty times as much as 
the percentage of a higher value property.  

• Highlighted that the proposal for the voluntary contribution fund ringfenced within the 
Community Foundation Surrey was deemed viable and within the Council’s legal 
powers to implement, it should not be trivialised by being called a tax.  

• Noted that the idea for the voluntary contribution fund was not mad or without 
supporters, Westminster City Council had introduced the Community Contribution 
Fund which sometimes had generated £500,000 in extra money a year; Surrey is 
five times bigger. 

• Highlighted that those not in Band H might feel guilty and feel that they have to 
contribute and that they did not want donations to charities to be diverted to the 
voluntary contribution fund instead; and urged people to donate to the Voluntary, 
Community and Faith Sector.  

• Queried how much the voluntary contribution fund would cost to run, the Council 
would have to ensure transparency and scrutiny on how money is collected and from 
who, people may want to stipulate that their donation is spent in their local area; it 
would be difficult to manage and staff would need to be employed to run it. 

• Noted that in response to the proposer’s call for the budget process to start earlier, 
clarified that the first discussion had on the budget was on the afternoon of last 
year's budget Council; over the past year there had been numerous scrutiny 
meetings, Cabinet meetings and one-to-one meetings with the proposer and none of 
the proposals had been raised during that process. 

• Noted that regarding the voluntary contribution fund, targeting Band H households to 
pay a surcharge on their Council Tax bills was unacceptable, it was not the role of a 
local authority to raise money in that way or to decide how it would be spent; it 
should not be assumed that residents in Band H properties are able to contribute.  

• Noted that there was no guarantee that the proposer might not attempt to extend the 
voluntary contribution fund to Bands F and G or any other band. 

• Noted that the proposal was unworkable, the Section 151 officer’s commentary 
noted that there was no mechanism in place to either administer or collect the 
contributions, and the Council would be unable to place any reliance on it as a 
funding stream as the amount generated was uncertain.  

• Noted concern that Members had either not understood the voluntary contribution 
fund or had misinterpreted it as it was not a tax, it encouraged donations from those 
able to afford it; hoped that people do donate to charities.  

• Noted that the amendment highlighted that the Council Tax banding is unfair and 
ridiculous, Buckingham Palace is valued at around £1 billion and it is a Band H 
property and its Council Tax is only £1,828. 

• Noted that the way the Conservatives reacted to the amendment or dared question it 
being put forward was over the top, it is a democratic institution and the opposition 
are obligated to suggest alternatives or highlight weaknesses.  

• Noted that regarding the due process, there was no requirement for any amendment 
on the budget to be brought via select committee, nor was that the norm in most 
other councils. 

Page 18



233 
 

• Highlighted that if no amendment had been proposed by the opposition then the 
administration would have condemned that. 

• Noted that it was unsurprising that the Conservatives were revolted at the idea of 
asking the wealthiest residents to consider making a voluntary contribution. 

• Noted that all the proposed voluntary contribution fund would require was additional 
text in the Council Tax letter highlighting how people could donate, it could be 
administered using existing resources. 

• Noted that when talking to people about whether they would be happy to pay a bit 
more to see things better, many were willing to do so provided they now where the 
money went - that amendment specified that.   

• Noted that the administration should not be focusing on the voluntary contribution 
fund but at the other proposals within the amendment and what the Council should 
be doing for its children and their parents.  
 

A Member raised a point of order under Standing Order 16.3 regarding the relevance of 
speech strictly to the budget amendment and asked whether the Chair would rule out of 
order any Member who refers to the budget amendment as a tax scheme, when it is 
clearly a voluntary scheme. The Chair noted that the debate was on the budget 
amendment as published. 

 

• Noted that having searched on the internet, had not found anything about the results 
of a voluntary contribution scheme at a London authority that proposed the idea in 
2019; if it was a success it would have been promoted.  

• Felt that it would be wrong to suggest to any resident where they should donate their 
money and felt uncomfortable with some residents being singled out to contribute 
more. 

• Congratulated the proposer on the way she handled the work of the Budget Task 
Group and its contributions to the budget, the Cabinet had delivered on the main 
recommendations put forward; the list of proposals in the amendment and their 
costings required proper analysis.  

• Noted that there was an assumption that the Council was a charity which it was not 
and the voluntary surcharge would hit charities, a lot of hard work went into charity 
fundraising. 

• Noted that the opposition complained about debt yet they sought higher spending 
and the use of reserves which was irresponsible.  

• Noted the outrageous attitude shown towards charities which were independent and 
so was appalled at the idea of political interference, the voluntary contribution fund 
destroys the nature of charity donations being freely given to the causes the donors 
support, and donors also provide their valuable time.  

• Noted that the proposals were innovative and creative, and as Chair of the CFLLC 
Select Committee was pleased for the select committee to review those to see how 
they could be taken forward and to review the proposals from the directorate in 
terms of the additional government funding for Children’s Services.   

• Noted that the borough and district councils collect Council Tax, regarding the 
voluntary contribution fund the money would have to be properly handled and 
distributed with a clear audit trail and that would be a further cost. 

• Highlighted the importance of digital for serving residents and was offended by the 
singling out of the Communication, Engagement and Public Affairs and the 
Customer & Communities directorates for a staff review, making those hard-working 
staff feel vulnerable. 

• Noted that despite Surrey being a prosperous part of the country, for example 
Waverley had the highest multiple of house prices in the country outside of London, 
the Council was not wealthy having been underfunded by the Government. 

Page 19



234 
 

• Noted that the select committees were advisory committees on budget matters, the 
Council makes the final decision so could choose to support the proposals in the 
amendment. 

• Noted that the younger generation had been failed by the Government over the past 
decade. 

• Noted that it was easy to find the reports on the successes that Westminster City 
Council had on their Community Contribution Fund which raised £400,000 in its first 
year from voluntary contributions, it operated through a charitable trust and Gift Aid 
could be claimed back.  

• Represented some of the poorest divisions in the county with 32% of the population 
having at least one of the deprivation indexes meaning those families cannot pay 
their Council Tax or afford to heat their homes, the Government would withdraw the 
Household Support Fund in April which was a lifeline for many families and therefore 
asking those able to contribute was fair and decent. 

 
The Chair asked Catherine Powell, as proposer of the budget amendment to conclude the 
debate: 
 

• Reiterated that the voluntary contribution fund was open to all, it would not be 
collected via Council Tax so would not impact the borough and district councils, it 
would be collected via the Community Foundation for Surrey.  

• Noted that she speaks to wealthier residents in her division with disposable income 
and working as a key member in a local charity that works closely with one of the 21 
Key Neighbourhoods, encourages them to donate directly to that charity, and many 
do but the funding is limited.  

• Noted that the voluntary contribution fund provided an opportunity to address the fact 
that funding from the Government for early intervention, prevention and support 
services would never be prioritised over statutory services. 

• Welcomed the additional £11 million from the Government and wished she had 
known about it earlier, the amendment tried to find ways to fund those gaps by 
asking people to make donations to help those most in need; it was not about 
diverting funding away from charities.  

• If the amendment was not carried, she hoped that the recommendations for 
spending and raising funds would be taken to the select committees to be given 
proper consideration based on the facts contained in the amendment; hoped the 
select committee chairs would be supportive of that and if not in place by the end of 
the year she would bring the proposals back.  

 
The budget amendment was put to the vote with 33 Members voting For, 43 voting 
Against and no Abstentions.  
 
The following Members voted for it:  
 
Catherine Baart, John Beckett, Amanda Boote, Dennis Booth, Harry Boparai, Stephen 
Cooksey, Nick Darby, Fiona Davidson, Jonathan Essex, Robert Evans OBE, Chris Farr, 
Paul Follows, Will Forster, Angela Goodwin, Jeffrey Gray, Robert King, Eber Kington, 
Andy MacLeod, Michaela Martin, Jan Mason, Steven McCormick, Julia McShane, Carla 
Morson, George Potter, Catherine Powell, Penny Rivers, Joanne Sexton, Lance Spencer, 
Ashley Tilling, Chris Townsend, Liz Townsend, Hazel Watson, Fiona White.  
 
The following Members voted against it:  
 
Maureen Attewell, Ayesha Azad, Steve Bax, Jordan Beech, Luke Bennett, Natalie 
Bramhall, Helyn Clack, Clare Curran, Paul Deach, Kevin Deanus, John Furey, Matt 

Page 20



235 
 

Furniss, Tim Hall, Edward Hawkins, Marisa Heath, Trefor Hogg, Robert Hughes, Jonathan 
Hulley, Saj Hussain, Rebecca Jennings-Evans, Frank Kelly, Riasat Khan, Rachael Lake 
BEM, Victor Lewanski, David Lewis (Cobham), David Lewis (Camberley West), Scott 
Lewis, Andy Lynch, Ernest Mallett MBE, Cameron McIntosh, Sinead Mooney, Bernie Muir, 
Mark Nuti, John O’Reilly, Tim Oliver, Rebecca Paul, Lesley Steeds, Mark Sugden, 
Richard Tear, Denise Turner-Stewart, Jeremy Webster, Buddhi Weerasinghe, Keith 
Witham.  

 
Therefore it was RESOLVED that:  
 
The budget amendment was lost.  
 
Returning to the original budget proposal and recommendations as published in the 
agenda, fourteen Members spoke on it: 

 

• Highlighted the £10 million overspend on the MySurrey IT system, that amount 
could have funded a team of one hundred top-notch people for a year; it could have 
been used to fund much needed services.  

• Noted that central to the Leader’s speech was caring for residents from cradle to 
grave, yet the reality for residents of that experience was that the Conservative 
Council let people down due to the inadequate provision of many services and little 
progress made on climate change, the budget repeated that.  

• Noted that in a difficult time for local government finance, the budget was positive for 
Surrey’s residents and focused on their priorities, having been informed by 
extensive consultation with the public and stakeholders. 

• Noted that the extra £32 million of highways investment was making a difference, for 
example three roads in Woking South-West were scheduled for resurfacing. 

• Welcomed the extra £5 million investment for Children's Services which was 
focused on providing extra capacity for children with additional educational needs, 
used their Member allowance to support ‘Appeer’ which provided help to girls and 
women with autism.  

• Noted that the number of specialist school places had increased by 1,000 since 
2019 as a result of the administration's capital programme. 

• Noted that the overall the budget provided another £95 million of spending for next 
year despite several grants being less than expected, the Council Tax rise and 
efficiencies sought to protect the provision of services. 

• Noted that the cross-party Budget Task Group and select committees played a 
constructive role in helping set the budget. 

• Noted that the Communities, Environment and Highways Select Committee had 
scrutinised the transport and infrastructure elements of the budget describing the 
capital programme as ambitious in terms of its significant investment; but asked 
whether the £11 million additional funding could be used to fully fund the 
implementation of the Task & Finish Group recommendations. 

• Noted that the Council was not immune from the challenges of increased inflation 
and rising demand for its services, despite that the Council's finances were robust 
and holding that level of reserves was a responsible way to operate and had over 
five years enabled the delivery of more services. 

• Welcomed the £10.9 million of additional funding which would enable increased 
investment in further preventative measures. 

• Noted that the proposed revenue budget for next year amounted to a total funding of 
£1.197 billion, or an increase of £95 million or nearly 9% compared to last year. 

• Noted that the Council was legally required to balance the budget, that would 
require an increase in Council Tax by 2.99% and a 2% increase in the Adult Social 
Care precept; a rise of £1.61 weekly for a Band D property. 

Page 21



236 
 

• Noted that the budget would allow the Council to make significant investments in its 
bus services including on-demand buses, highways and in environmental services, 
with an additional £30 million for the core highways maintenance budget for the next 
two years, Member Highways Allocations had increased by a further £20,000 to 
£120,000 annually.  

• Noted that the budget would enable the Council to further support the most 
vulnerable residents across the county, by 2028/29 it was forecasted that the 
Council would be spending £165 million on preventative activities, in addition to 
£538 million of planned spending on the capital programme over five years.  

• Noted that the Council’s capital programme was ambitious but affordable with a 
proposed spending of £1.9 billion over the next five years, the proposed spend next 
year was a further £409 million; the Council was investing in the future of the county 
and vital services to leave no one behind.  

• Noted that the Leader had been consistent in asserting that the improvement of 
services for children and young people was this Council's absolute priority, the 
Children’s Services budget had increased to a total of £286 million.  

• Noted that the Children’s Services spending was rigorously managed, welcomed the 
cautious support given by the Chair of the CFLLC Select Committee which had been 
clear in its recommendations about the budget. 

• Noted that Children's Services was needs driven and continued to face pressures in 
terms of contacts and referrals about children at risk of harm and neglect, Looked 
After Children and duties towards Care Leavers, there were more children with 
EHCPs and there were national pressures around the recruitment of social workers, 
placement and Home to School Transport costs had increased. 

• Noted that despite the local and national pressures, the Children’s Service 
continued its focus on increasing the quality of frontline services, concerning early 
intervention and prevention that was through the investment in the Family 
Safeguarding Model of social care since 2018 and the Edge of Care work. 

• Noted that the additional £5 million funding for Children’s Services would be 
targeted on services prioritised by the directorate, on preventative services such as 
Short Breaks, Early Help networks and support for foster carers.  

• Noted that Children’s Services was driving through several key capital projects 
spending over £30 million on the residential estate for children and young people, 
£140 million was being invested to expand the specialist school estate keeping 
children rooted in their communities in Surrey. 

• Noted that the Adult Social Care directorate was focused on optimising technology 
enabled care working in partnership to support people to live independently, the 
significant long-term transformation plan streamlined the current referral process 
and sought to maximise reablement. 

• Noted that the Council was investing an extra 6% in Adult Social Care or £27.2 
million, an achievement considering the increasing national demand for services, the 
impact of the living wage and inflationary increases; the number of people awaiting 
assessments across the country had risen by 500,000 since last spring. 

• Noted the target in Surrey to deliver 725 units of extra care by 2030, planning 
permission had been secured at one site with construction to start shortly and 
outline planning permission at two further sites with construction to begin in 2025. 

• Noted that the Council had also started the delivery of 500 units of supported 
independent living for people with a learning disability or autism, of those 200 units 
were for residents living with mental health issues and Short Break facilities.  

• Noted that the Council seeks to have an equal and financially sustainable care 
market and was working with providers, the Surrey Care Association and a wider 
market to look at managing inflation, stabilising the social care workforce and 
reducing high-cost variations.  

Page 22



237 
 

• Noted that the benefits from Your Fund Surrey projects had exceeded expectations, 
£17 million had been invested delivering 35 large projects across Surrey, £1 million 
had been distributed by Members at a divisional level to deliver 119 small projects 
across Surrey delivering accessible, free or affordable community activities and 
facilities for thousands of residents; enabling local ownership and leadership, and 
tackling rural and urban decline. 

• Noted that £23 million had been injected into the Libraries Transformation 
Programme to realise the potential of the 52 libraries, enabling Surrey’s libraries to 
become modern community hubs with extended hours, well-equipped resource 
centres, and residents were involved in the co-design of the services.  

• Thanked the Leader and Cabinet for taking on board the CFLLC Select Committee’s 
recommendations particularly around Short Breaks.  

• Represented a very poor area with people struggling to pay Council Tax, yet one 
part was well-off with wealthy inhabitants so queried why the Council could not 
charge the millionaire homes more. 

• Noted that whilst there was a lot of good in the budget, the spending of millions of 
pounds in some areas could have been avoided by investing in a secure base, and 
elsewhere grass cutting had not been done and youth services had reduced.  

• That as Chair of the CFLLC Select Committee, thanked the Cabinet Member and 
Leader for accepting the select committee’s budget recommendations, however 
would have liked to have seen less of a focus on efficiencies.  

• Recognised the Leader and Cabinet’s commitment to putting the additional funding 
provided by the Government into Children's and Family Services, progress was 
being made and it would continue to be an area of high demand and affected by 
high inflation.  

• Noted that additional costs above what was planned in the budget for children's 
placements this year was £16.1 million on top of an increased budget for Home to 
School Transport at £45 million with an overspend of £4.7 million, it was 
disappointing that Government funding would likely not increase soon.  

• Noted that expectations had increased within the CFLLC Select Committee, which 
would not stop making suggestions and hoped that it would get the same response 
next year.  

• Welcomed the appreciation given to the administration regarding the progress made 
in Children’s Services, over the year the recommendations had received unanimous 
support including the £400,000 for Short Breaks. 

• Noted that it was the best budget produced by the administration, it was pragmatic 
and compassionate, delivering for the most vulnerable.  

• Noted that in December the Communities, Environment and Highways Select 
Committee strongly questioned the idea to have efficiencies of £400,000 for the 
Surrey Fire and Rescue Service (SFRS), as the last two Inspectorate assessments 
had deemed the SFRS to need improvements for technical reasons. 

• Referred to the Brightwells Yard scheme in Farnham, last week the Leader attended 
the opening of a cinema and met the Farnham Visitors’ Forum; welcomed the 
Council’s support and take-over of the finding of tenants for the commercial part of 
the scheme from the supplier.   

• Noted the importance of the Farnham Infrastructure Programme locally, thanked the 
Leader for continuing to support that. 

• Noted that £0.9 million savings had been made regarding waste re-procurement as 
part of the strategy to move to a disaggregated contract model, £3 million savings 
had been made on outsourcing the Facilities Management service and across the 
agile programme. 

• Noted the ambitious capital programme and the following had been delivered: forty-
four SEND classes, school expansions and refurbishments, two new schools, 
seventeen school expansions and refurbishments were on site, with one new school 

Page 23



238 
 

on site and another twenty expansions and refurbishments would be delivered in 
2025/26.  

• Noted the delivery of a temporary mortuary, two new salt barns would be delivered 
shortly, noted the library refurbishments and community hubs, two new children's 
homes had been delivered and were on site at another one, a family centre had 
been delivered, work on Short Breaks sites would start soon in Woking and 
Banstead, work was underway on the independent living and extra care sites.  

• Highlighted that there would be over fifty projects under construction across the 
county this summer and once built those would deliver revenue savings, the Council 
was disposing of empty properties and was selling land for residential housing, 
getting large capital receipts for Surrey. 

 

The Leader of the Council made the following comments in response: 

 

• Emphasised that it was the most serious meeting that the Council has where 
Members each year decide how residents’ Council Tax money should be spent.  

• Noted that he had no issue with the amendment’s proposer and other opposition 
Members who wish to write to their residents - not using Council resource - asking 
them for a voluntary contribution and would be interested in the outcome; wondered 
whether the Community Foundation for Surrey had been contacted about whether 
they would be prepared to administer it.   

• Stressed that if the opposition vote against or abstain from the vote on the budget, 
that meant they were saying that they would not spend £1 of their Council Tax on 
Council services.  

• Reiterated that since becoming Leader, any substantial policy changes had been 
scrutinised by the select committees and would continue to do so; praised the select 
committees’ invaluable work. 

• Clarified that the budget for SFRS in 2023/24 was £39.2 million, increasing to £41.1 
million in 2024/25, a significant investment would be made in rebuilding new training 
facilities to make those compliant.  

• Supported the investment in Farnham and was delighted to attend the opening 
ceremony of the REEL Cinema last week and to address the Farnham Visitors’ 
Forum on the work and support provided by the Council; would be pleased to see 
the road improvement works starting before the summer.  

• Agreed with the need for the reform of local government funding with many well-
managed councils struggling, had lobbied the Government for a long-term funding 
solution in his role at the County Councils Network and would continue that fight. 

• Noted that the services provided by Children's Services were targeted, the Council 
had to ensure that the areas highlighted and recommendations in the Inspection of 
Local Authority Children's Services (ILACS) and SEND area inspection must be 
followed through. 

• Emphasised the need for a whole-system approach, for example EHCPs required 
the commitment of the health service and partners such as the police and voluntary 
sector for effective services to be delivered.  

• Stated that he would welcome Jonathan Essex’s attendance at a Surrey Leaders’ 
Group meeting to make the case for the Council to be the lead climate authority. 

• Explained that he secured the additional funding by putting forward a focused case 
around the need for additional support for Children’s Services, last year councils 
received £2 billion funding for Adult Social Care and noted that he would honour the 
pledge that the additional funding would go into Children's Services; that additional 
funding was a result of a small group of mainly Conservative Members of Parliament 
lobbying the Prime Minister. 

Page 24



239 
 

• Regarding youth services, recognised that Robert Evans OBE had alongside fellow 
trustees worked hard to try to reopen the youth centre in Weybridge; noted that 
several years ago the Council took the decision to focus time and money on 
supporting those with additional needs, it provided funding to independent 
organisations that then picked up and carried on those universal services. 

• Noted that the budget had increased by £100 million this year, with around £25 
million more for Adult Social Care and £40 million more for Children's Services. 

• Noted that over £1 billion was being spent to improve the lives of Surrey’s residents, 
£500 million was being spent on prevention and early intervention through capital 
projects to support the extra facilities across the directorates. 
 

After the debate the Chair called the recommendations, which included the Council Tax 
precept proposals, and a recorded vote was taken with 43 voting For, 23 voting Against 
and 10 Abstentions.  
 
The following Members voted for it:  
 
Maureen Attewell, Ayesha Azad, Steve Bax, Jordan Beech, Luke Bennett, Natalie 
Bramhall, Helyn Clack, Clare Curran, Paul Deach, Kevin Deanus, John Furey, Matt 
Furniss, Tim Hall, Edward Hawkins, Marisa Heath, Trefor Hogg, Robert Hughes, Jonathan 
Hulley, Saj Hussain, Rebecca Jennings-Evans, Frank Kelly, Riasat Khan, Rachael Lake 
BEM, Victor Lewanski, David Lewis (Cobham), David Lewis (Camberley West), Scott 
Lewis, Andy Lynch, Ernest Mallett MBE, Cameron McIntosh, Sinead Mooney, Bernie Muir, 
Mark Nuti, John O’Reilly, Tim Oliver, Rebecca Paul, Lesley Steeds, Mark Sugden, 
Richard Tear, Denise Turner-Stewart, Jeremy Webster, Buddhi Weerasinghe, Keith 
Witham.  
 
The following Members voted against it:  
 
Catherine Baart, Harry Boparai, Stephen Cooksey, Jonathan Essex, Robert Evans OBE, 
Chris Farr, Paul Follows, Will Forster, Angela Goodwin, Jeffrey Gray, Robert King, Eber 
Kington, Jan Mason, Julia McShane, Carla Morson, George Potter, Penny Rivers, Joanne 
Sexton, Lance Spencer, Ashley Tilling, Liz Townsend, Hazel Watson, Fiona White.  
 
The following Members abstained: 
 
John Beckett, Amanda Boote, Dennis Booth, Nick Darby, Fiona Davidson, Andy 
MacLeod, Michaela Martin, Steven McCormick, Catherine Powell, Chris Townsend.   
 
Therefore it was RESOLVED that:  
 
Council noted the following features of the revenue and capital budget, and in line 
with Section 25 of the Local Government Act 2003: 

1. The Deputy Chief Executive & Executive Director of Resources’ (Section 151 
Officer) conclusion that estimates included in the Final Budget Report and Medium-
Term Financial Strategy are sufficiently robust in setting the budget for 2024/25; and 

2. That it is the view of the Deputy Chief Executive & Executive Director of Resources 
(Section 151 Officer), that the level of reserves is adequate to meet the Council’s 
needs for 2024/25. These reserves and contingencies include the following 
amounts, (totalling £107.0m) set aside specifically to provide financial resilience: 

• the General Fund (£49m). 

• Specific contingencies built into the 2024/25 budget (£20m); and 

Page 25



240 
 

• Unused contingency brought forward from previous years (at least £38m 
depending on 2023/24 outturn).  

Proposed budget: Council approved the following Revenue and Capital budget 
decisions: 

3. The net revenue budget requirement be set at £1,197.1 million (net cost of services 
after service specific government grants) for 2024/25 (Annex B), subject to 
confirmation of the Final Local Government Financial Settlement. 

4. The total Council Tax Funding Requirement be set at £914.9 million for 2024/25. 
This is based on a council tax increase of 4.99%, made up of an increase in the 
level of core council tax of 2.99% and an increase of 2% in the precept proposed by 
Central Government to cover the growing cost of Adult Social Care (Annex E). 

5. For the purpose of section 52ZB of the Local Government Finance Act 1992, the 
Council formally determines that the increase in core council tax is not such as to 
trigger a referendum (i.e. not greater than 3%). 

6. Sets the Surrey County Council precept for Band D Council Tax at £1,758.60, which 
represents a 4.99% uplift. This is a rise of £1.61 a week from the 2023/24 precept of 
£1,675.08. This includes £251.44 for the Adult Social Care precept, which has 
increased by £33.50. A full list of bands is as follows: 

Valuation 

band Core precept ASC precept

Overall 

precept

A 1,004.77£      167.63£         1,172.40£      

B 1,172.24£      195.56£         1,367.80£      

C 1,339.70£      223.50£         1,563.20£      

D 1,507.16£      251.44£         1,758.60£      

E 1,842.08£      307.32£         2,149.40£      

F 2,177.01£      363.19£         2,540.20£      

G 2,511.93£      419.07£         2,931.00£      

H 3,014.32£      502.88£         3,517.20£       
 

7. The use of £5m of the additional social care funding, announced in January 2024, to 
enable additional targeted preventative and early intervention investment in 
children’s services.   

8. Delegated powers to the Leader and Deputy Chief Executive & Director of 
Resources (Section 151 Officer) to finalise budget proposals and recommendations 
to County Council, updated to take into account new information in the Final Local 
Government Finance Settlement; 

9. The Total Schools Budget of £656.7 million to meet the Council’s statutory 
requirement on schools funding (as set out in Section 9 of the 2024/25 Final Budget 
and Medium-Term Financial Strategy to 2028/29). 

10. The overall indicative Budget Envelopes for Directorates and individual services for 
the 2024/25 budget (Annex B). 

11. The total £1,902.4 million proposed five-year Capital Programme (comprising 
£1,291.3 million of budget and £611.1 million pipeline) and approved the £404.9 
million Capital Budget in 2024/25 (Annex C). 

12. The investment in Transformation required to deliver improved outcomes and 
financial benefits is built into the proposed Medium-Term Financial Strategy (as set 
out in section 3 of 2024/25 Final Budget Report and Medium-Term Financial 
Strategy to 2028/29). 

Page 26



241 
 

Capital and Investment Strategies: Council approved the following:  
 

13. The Capital, Investment and Treasury Management Strategy which provides an 
overview of how risks associated with capital expenditure, financing and treasury will 
be managed as well as how they contribute towards the delivery of services (Annex 
F). 

14. The policy for making a prudent level of revenue provision for the repayment of debt 
- the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) Policy (Annex G).  
 

6/24 MEMBERS’ QUESTION TIME   [Item 6] 
 

Paul Follows and Penny Rivers left the meeting at 13.00 pm.  
 
Questions:  
 
Notice of thirteen questions had been received. The questions and replies were published 
in the supplementary agenda (items 5i and 6) on 5 February 2024.  
 
A number of supplementary questions were asked and a summary of the main points is 
set out below:  

 
(Q1) Joanne Sexton referred to the second paragraph of the response around the trial of 
the machinery and regarding the wording of ‘they felt’ and ‘we do not believe’, she asked 
the Cabinet Member to confirm why the advantages and disadvantages were not included 
in his response. She requested a detailed report as to why the Council was not 
proceeding with the innovative idea and to confirm how it was evaluated and analysed.  
 
The Cabinet Member for Highways, Transport and Economic Growth noted that there was 
a detailed report and he would check with the Highways Laboratory regarding whether it 
could be shared with Members. The JCB Pothole Pro was found to be more suited to 
wider surfacing repairs and that had not achieved better results than existing machinery, 
there were concerns around the compacting of the material and need for additional 
transportation to move it across Surrey.  
 
(Q3) Will Forster asked whether the Cabinet Member could let Members know when the 
final costs are agreed with the aggrieved family. 
 
The Cabinet Member for Children and Families, Lifelong Learning would provide that 
information.  
 
(Q4) Hazel Watson referred to the problems with issuing paper parking permits for 
visitors with only twenty-eight residents applying for those, and asked what was being 
done to monitor and to ensure that all residents who want paper permits get them. She 
also asked when the Council's website would be updated on the application process. 
 
The Cabinet Member for Highways, Transport and Economic Growth noted that he would 
talk to officers about updating the website, there was also a phone number available. He 
noted that residents were written to about the changes to the contract. He explained that 
the team could look at SFRS’ vulnerable list to determine whether other people needed to 
be contacted on the matter. The team would be happy to contact any other residents that 
required assistance.  
 
(Q5) Stephen Cooksey noted that as it was a statutory requirement, he sought 
assurance that the information would be published as soon as received. 

Page 27



242 
 

 
Chris Townsend referred to the last sentence of the response that monthly reports on 
local enforcement activity were being sent to Members, he noted that those reports did not 
include information on enforcement around schools and he sought assurance that it would 
be included.    
 
The Cabinet Member for Highways, Transport and Economic Growth responded to 
Stephen Cooksey noting that once received that information would be published and it 
would be included in the monthly update, he noted that some of the borough and district 
councils had not provided the information requested. Responding to Chris Townsend he 
noted that the schools programme would be added into the monthly report once it was up 
and running.  
 
(Q6) Jonathan Essex asked whether the Cabinet Member would agree that it was 
unacceptable that since public health had become local authorities’ responsibility, it had a 
lower increase than it had within the NHS. He noted that if the Council was serious about 
prevention, he asked whether the Cabinet Member could write to the Government to 
demand an increase at least in line with Council Tax. 
 
The Leader noted that yesterday the Government announced the coming year's public 
health grant and the Council would receive an additional £400,000, there was £700,000 
more in the Council’s budget for next year compared to this year. 
 
The Cabinet Member for Health and Wellbeing, and Public Health noted that he would 
welcome more money for public health, he congratulated the team for their hard work in 
the efficient use of the money available working in partnership across the system on 
prevention. Lobbying the Government for more money was ongoing. 
 
(Q7) Catherine Baart noted that the baseline data was from 2019, she asked what was 
causing the delay in publishing the newer baseline data and when would the first 
measurement be made against that. 
 
The Cabinet Member for Highways, Transport and Economic Growth would provide a 
written response.  

 
(Q8) Catherine Powell noted that the Foster Carers Portal was critical to the Council and 
welcomed that the project was in the build phase, but the roll out deadline of 31 March 
was challenging. She asked the Cabinet Member to advise how and when an End User 
Acceptance Group would be chosen and how much testing was proposed by the end of 
March. 
 
Steven McCormick was astonished at the response given the MySurrey project for which 
business as usual issues remain ongoing since its go live in June 2023. He highlighted 
several areas of concern in the response around the Foster Carers Portal project which 
culminated in the potential delay in the implementation, he queried whether nothing had 
been learnt from implementing the MySurrey project and stressed the need to ensure that 
the same mistakes are not repeated. He asked for the Foster Carers Portal project plan to 
be urgently reviewed and a realistic and achievable plan be created and republished to 
improve its chances of a timely and on budget implementation. 
 
The Cabinet Member for Children and Families, Lifelong Learning agreed that the Foster 
Carers Portal was an important project for the Council, the Fostering Service and foster 
carers, it was an enhancement designed to make foster carers’ lives easier. She 
welcomed the comments made and would ask the Fostering Service to expand on the 
plans and circulate information appropriately.   

Page 28



243 
 

  
(Q9) Robert Evans OBE noted that his question had implications for all Members. He 
asked whether the Cabinet Member was happy with the change in admission criterion and 
asked what advice she would provide to parents about the problem that they now could 
not get a place at their nearest school. He asked whether the Cabinet Member understood 
that if those changes were not challenged, there would be more families travelling further 
across Surrey taking their children to school. It seemed absurd that children were not 
allowed to have a choice of going to their nearest primary school. 
 
The Cabinet Member for Children and Families, Lifelong Learning urged the Member to 
read the response closely which had been provided by the admissions service and to 
understand that it was in line with guidance issued by the Office of the Schools 
Adjudicator (OSA) and admissions law. Governing bodies can replace the words ‘nearest 
school’ for example the school in her division replaced the wording with ‘proximity of the 
child's address to the school’. The wording had changed but not the principle, the OSA 
asked for the removal of that wording to make it clearer to parents when making an 
application to a school regarding the likelihood of being admitted based on their distance 
from the school.  
 
(Q10) Catherine Powell welcomed that the team had acknowledged that there was a 
secondary school shortage in Farnham and it was significant and growing, without an 
easy solution. She asked the Cabinet Member to advise when she thinks there would be a 
solution to the problem. Having looked at locations in Farnham where a school could be 
constructed there did not seem to be the sites, yet the Council was building more homes; 
the Home to School Transport budget would increase. 
 
Michaela Martin noted that as lead member of the Farnham Neighbourhood Plan Group, 
asked whether it would it be possible to put the matter in writing to Farnham Town Council 
and for it to be made more aware of any developments in the future.  
 
The Cabinet Member for Children and Families, Lifelong Learning responded to Michaela 
Martin noting that the question and response had been published in the public domain and 
therefore could be shared with Farnham Town Council. Responding to Catherine Powell, 
she could not say when a new school would be built in Farnham to meet the additional 
need. She urged the Member to keep in touch with the Education Place Planning team on 
the matter. She was aware that the planning for and delivery of a new school could take 
many years and she hoped that a solution could be found whether that would be the 
building of a new school or otherwise. 
 
(Q11) Robert Evans OBE noted that the Cabinet Member asked in 2019/20 for 
Government changes, he asked whether four years was long enough to have those 
changes. He asked what advice he would give to residents who cannot walk along the 
pavement outside their house as it is blocked by vehicles, or those residents in a 
wheelchair or with a pram who cannot use blocked pavements. He noted that phoning the 
police was not a solution. The Leader had recently visited his division and saw many 
vehicles parked on pavements. 
 
John O’Reilly asked whether the Cabinet Member would agree that it would be 
appropriate that the Member lobbies the Labour Party on the matter. 
 
Mark Sugden noted that the consultation on pavement parking closed in November 2020 
and no report had been published. He asked whether the Cabinet Member or former 
portfolio holder had received any answers from the Department for Transport (DfT) to their 
requests regarding when the report would be published.  
 

Page 29



244 
 

The Cabinet Member for Highways, Transport and Economic Growth responded to Mark 
Sugden noting that DfT stated that the report would be published in due time, he would 
chase DfT again on the matter. Responding to Robert Evans OBE he noted that the law 
was that people could ring the police if a vehicle was blocking a pavement and he urged 
them to do so. Unless there were yellow lines or a parking restriction then the pavement 
could not be enforced. He noted that in his division having rung 101, a police officer did 
move a vehicle along that was blocking a pavement.  

 
(Q12) Catherine Powell thanked the Cabinet Member for confirming that the 
Performance Indicators were being regularly monitored and asked for him to advise which 
of those indicators he thought were the most concerning to him and what action he was 
taking.  
 
Edward Hawkins asked whether the Cabinet Member was aware that for the past seven 
years he had problems with an area on a shopping precinct which had been designated 
as highway land, over the Christmas period and despite bad weather Ringway worked 
hard and carried out a superb job; he noted his thanks.  
 
The Cabinet Member for Highways, Transport and Economic Growth welcomed those 
positive comments from Edward Hawkins. Responding to Catherine Powell, he noted that 
there was not a particular indicator that was a concern, the Performance Indicators should 
be looked at together and those changed throughout the year. Due to the mild winter, 
there had been fewer potholes. He urged the Member to attend the Communities, 
Environment and Highways Select Committee to see the Performance Indicators and 
comment on those as appropriate.   

 
7/24 STATEMENTS BY MEMBERS   [Item 7] 

 
Rachael Lake BEM (Walton) made a statement on a new free school with 950 pupils 
which had nearly completed its improvement works, it had successfully admitted its 
second intake. Opposite that free school there would be a new Special Educational Needs 
school and those places were desperately needed. There had initially been problems 
around the improvement works to the free school but those had been eliminated through 
the communication and reassurance provided to residents by BAM Construction; she had 
not received any complaints in the last nine months. 
 
Maureen Attewell (Laleham and Shepperton) made a statement on the recent flooding in 
her division, she shared her immense gratitude and appreciation to all those that played a 
vital role in the collective response. Residents of Abbeyfields had been helped by the 
Surrey Fire and Rescue Service to evacuate their homes on 8 January. In response, 
Spelthorne Borough Council opened a rest centre in Shepperton and the Adult Social 
Care service was notified and service managers assessed the needs of the residents in a 
caring way and provided reassurance.  

 
8/24 REPORT OF THE PEOPLE, PERFORMANCE AND DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE   

[Item 8] 
 

As Chairman of the People, Performance and Development Committee, the Leader 
introduced the report.  

 
RESOLVED: 

 
1. Appointed Leigh Whitehouse as Interim Chief Executive and Head of the Council’s 

paid service of Surrey County Council with effect from 7 March 2024. 

Page 30



245 
 

2. Appointed Anna D’Alessandro as Interim Statutory Section 151 Officer with effect 
from 7 March 2024. 

 
9/24 REVIEW OF MEMBERS' ALLOWANCES FOR 2024 - 2025 – REPORT OF THE 

INDEPENDENT REMUNERATION PANEL   [Item 9] 
 

The Leader introduced the report noting that regarding recommendation 6 for the Council 
to consider lobbying the Government to reinstate the right to vote remotely, that had 
recently been debated in the House of Commons and was rejected.  

 
Regarding recommendation 8 the Leader proposed the following amendment with 
additional words in bold/underlined: 
 
That the council provides a one-off payment to members in May 2025 for bespoke IT 
solutions. The payment would be to cover a four year term of office but would not be 
repeated should the member be re-elected. 
 
Regarding recommendation 9 the Leader proposed the following amendment with 
deletions crossed through: 
 
That the payment be in the range of £200-£300. 
 
The Leader acknowledged that in the current term of office some Members might have 
incurred additional costs by buying a computer screen for example and therefore there 
was the flexibility for any Member to claim that payment, however if re-elected they would 
not be able to claim that payment again. 

 
RESOLVED:  
 
Relating to the Basic Allowance  

 
1. That the Council continues with the 2020 recommendation of linking the basic 

allowance to the CPI. This should be adjusted on the 1st of April each year.  
2. That the increase in basic allowance is capped at the level of the average staff salary 

increase if this is lower than the CPI.  
 

Relating to Special Responsibility Allowances 
 

3. That the Council continues with the 2020 recommendation of linking any increase to 
SRAs to the CPI. This should be adjusted on the 1st of April each year.  

4. That the increase in SRAs is capped at the average level of the staff salary increase 
if this is lower than the CPI. 

 
Relating to Inclusivity  

 
5. That the Council conducts an audit of its meeting schedule with a specific focus on 

mandatory in-person attendance and any need for the meeting to be during the 
working day or on a particular day.  

6. That the Council considers lobbying Central Government to reinstate the right to vote 
remotely, as was utilised during the COVID pandemic.  

 
Relating to Expenses and food provision  

 
7. That the Council retains its existing subsistence and expenses framework including 

the provision of a lunch for appropriate meetings.  

Page 31



246 
 

 
Relating to Hybrid Working  

 
8. That the council provides a one-off payment to members in May 2025 for bespoke IT 

solutions. The payment would be to cover a four year term of office but would not be 
repeated should the member be re-elected.  

9. That the payment be £300. 
 

10/24 AMENDMENTS TO THE CONSTITUTION   [Item 10]  
 

The Chair noted the proposed changes to Part 2 – Articles of the Constitution. 
 

RESOLVED: 
 

1. Approved the amendments to Part 2 of the Constitution as set out in this report. 
 

11/24 REPORT OF THE CABINET   [Item 11] 
 
The Leader presented the report of the Cabinet meetings held on 11 December 2023, 19 
December 2023 and 30 January 2024.  
 
Recommendations on Policy Framework Documents:  

 
30 January 2024 

 
A. 2024/25 Final Budget and Medium-Term Financial Strategy to 2028/29 
 

RESOLVED:  
 
That the recommendations regarding this item had already been approved under item 5. 

 
B. Admission Arrangements for Surrey's Community and Voluntary Controlled Schools 

for September 2025    
                       

RESOLVED: 
 
Approved the admission arrangements for community and voluntary controlled schools, 
including the Published Admission Numbers (PANs), for September 2025 as set out in 
Annex 1 and its appendices. 
 
Reports for Information/Discussion 
 
11 December 2023: 

 
C. Local Area Special Educational Needs and/or Disabilities (SEND) Inspection 

Outcome and Actions 
 

19 December 2023: 
 

D. Special Guardian and Foster Care Remuneration 
E. A New Draft Vision Zero Road Safety Strategy and 20 mph Speed Limit Policy 
F. Acquisition of Corporate Office Hub in Northwest Surrey 

 
 
 

Page 32



247 
 

30 January 2024: 
 

G. Strategic Investment Board Annual Report - Financial Year 2022/23 
 

H. Quarterly Report on Decisions Taken Under Special Urgency Arrangements: 5 
December 2023 – 2 February 2024 

 
RESOLVED:  

 
1. Noted that there had been no urgent decisions since the last Cabinet report to 

Council.  
2. Adopted the report of the meetings of the Cabinet held on 11 December 2023, 19 

December 2023 and 30 January 2024. 
 

12/24 MINUTES OF CABINET MEETINGS  [Item 12] 
 
No notification had been received by the deadline from Members wishing to raise a 
question or make a statement on any matters in the minutes. 
 
The Chair thanked the Finance team for proposing a sustainable budget.  

 
 
 
 

[Meeting ended at: 13.35 pm] 
 
 

______________________________________ 
Chair 

 
 

Page 33



This page is intentionally left blank



249 
 

Leader's Statement – County Council (Budget Meeting), 6 February 2024 

 

Mr Chairman, Members, welcome to the first full Council meeting of 2024, and with it 

one of the most important items we discuss all year – our budget for the forthcoming 

12 months, and beyond. 

As I’ve said many times here, we take our duty and responsibility to the people of 

Surrey extremely seriously. 

We are making decisions with our residents’ council tax – a significant proportion of 

people’s household budgets – and with it, providing services they rely on every day, to 

improve their lives and stay safe and well. 

Ensuring we do that responsibly - setting a balanced budget, focusing on the right 

priorities, ensuring our foundations are strong for the future and our services are 

sustainable – is one of the most important duties we have. 

As I will set out in a moment, this budget does just that. 

Let’s not pretend otherwise, times for local government at the moment are tough. 

And there is no doubt that things are going to get tougher. 

Although inflation is slowing and interest rates are plateauing, costs have soared 

across the sector – in many areas well beyond the rate of that high inflation we’ve seen 

over the last 12 months. 

Our costs are rising much faster than our income, and it would be impossible and 

irresponsible to attempt to pass all of that on to our council taxpayers. 

 

Appendix A 

Page 35



250 
 

I very much welcome the recent, additional allocation of extra funding to councils 

through the Local Government Funding Settlement – something that I personally 

lobbied hard to achieve. That additional money has now been confirmed at £11million 

pounds and I would like to personally thank Jeremy Hunt, Michael Gove and the Prime 

Minister for their help and support in securing that funding.  

It will certainly help, and we will direct that extra funding to prevention measures and 

support for children with additional needs and disabilities. 

But it is not enough, and we will continue to work constructively with the government 

to push for more sustainable, longer-term funding certainty for local government and 

where appropriate reform to outdated legislation. 

As well as cost, demand is also increasing at an alarming rate, and with growing 

complexity. 

In many areas of Adult Social Care and Children’s Care, our provision of services is 

non-negotiable, and we must support people to live their lives safely and with the right 

level of care and support. 

More than 70% of our entire budget is spent on these areas – more than £2m every 

single day spent on what is a relatively small proportion of our population, but it is those 

people who need us most. 

And we will not leave those people behind. 

 

But we know that our more visible services, like road maintenance, libraries, 

countryside management, and community recycling centres, are the ones experienced 

by the most people.  

Page 36



251 
 

Lots of what we do – particularly across Surrey Fire & Rescue Service, Trading 

Standards, and Environmental Services – is about keeping people safe and preventing 

or responding to serious incidents. 

We will not ignore these responsibilities either. 

In fact, we’re increasing investment in our Highways and Environment Services, 

following a task and finish review undertaken by Cabinet earlier in the year that 

identified areas that would benefit residents the most. 

That will see service improvements including refreshing road lines, additional 

investment in gulley cleaning, area stewards, and grass-cutting – things we know 

matter to our local communities, increasing pride in where we live, as well as safety on 

our roads. 

This budget also includes significant investment in supporting and enhancing bus 

services across Surrey, with the introduction of a half price travel scheme and 

expansion of our digital demand-responsive buses, which have proved hugely popular, 

reducing car journeys, making travel easier and improving access to essential 

services, particularly in our more rural communities.  

Our libraries are some of the most visited in the country and improving all the time, 

with Super Access enabling more people to use them, for more hours of the day. 

 

We are investing in our countryside sites to increase access to that natural asset we’re 

so lucky to have. 

We are managing the county’s waste responsibly, with comparatively high levels of 

recycling and all our CRCs providing a vital service for residents. 

Page 37



252 
 

We are investing as much as we can afford in maintaining and improving Surrey’s 3000 

miles of roads and pavements, street lighting, and bridges. 

Our Fire and Rescue Service are working night and day to keep people safe, investing 

in the latest technology and equipment to respond to emergencies effectively, and 

working alongside residents and businesses to improve safety and stop those 

emergencies happening in the first place. 

We are actively supporting arts and culture across Surrey, recognising the huge 

benefits of the creative sector on people’s lives. 

We are registering births, deaths, and marriages across the county. 

We’re responsible for over a billion pounds a year using that money to have a positive 

impact on each and every resident, from cradle to grave and to make Surrey a better 

place. 

 

Mr Chairman, our capital investment programme is focused on getting the right building 

blocks in place to ensure demand can be met more effectively and sustainably in the 

years ahead: 

More modern forms of care accommodation and supported independent living 

schemes will enable elderly people and those with additional needs to live within the 

community for longer, increasing resilience and reducing reliance on expensive and 

often less effective institutionalised residential care. 

Our programme of building more modern children’s homes, to give those young people 

in care the best possible start in life, increasing their life chances, and health and 

Page 38



253 
 

wellbeing, so they are better able to forge a successful, stable, more independent life 

when leaving the care system. 

Building better schools – providing the best possible learning environment, with 

modern settings and technology, enabling young people in Surrey to develop the life 

skills that will help them flourish in the world. 

Funding community-led projects through Your Fund Surrey, which benefit local 

communities by increasing participation, connections and mutual support – helping 

communities help themselves to thrive. 

Investing in Surrey’s transport infrastructure and town centres, to enable easier, 

cleaner travel around our county, reducing emissions, improving air quality, health and 

wellbeing, and fundamentally tackling the climate emergency. 

 

This investment speaks to our forward-thinking – investing in the foundations of a 

modern preventative service, fit for the future. 

If local government is to survive, and indeed thrive, we must think differently again. 

We have to re-energise our transformation work – a mindset that has been hugely 

effective for us over the last few years. 

Looking to the future. 

Embracing change. 

Applying best practice. 

Thinking boldly and innovatively. 

Delivering our services in different ways, to deliver better outcomes more efficiently. 

Page 39



254 
 

We’re already progressing with several transformation projects to do just that. 

From our Fire & Rescue Service Improvement Plan, to redesigning how we provide 

Children’s Health and Care services alongside Surrey Heartlands. 

From mental health to environment, infrastructure and growth. 

We are redesigning how we provide services, how we organise ourselves, how we 

operate. 

We are setting out a renewed focus on customer service, ensuring our residents can 

engage with the council positively, understand the services they need, and access 

them more seamlessly. 

We will understand our communities better, though improved insights and intelligence, 

more consistent methods of engagement, all leading to more effective policy making. 

This is a continuation of the journey we have been navigating for the last six years, 

something we have proved that we can do even in the face of huge challenge - and do 

it effectively. 

This budget presented today outlines in stark terms the challenges we face, but also 

how we intend to tackle them. 

By strengthening our foundations, ensuring we are fit for the future and that our 

residents and our communities are supported to thrive. 

I note a late attempted amendment from the opposition, following months of 

engagement with at least 25 separate opportunities, via Scrutiny Committees and 

meetings, to input constructively into our budget setting process. Mr Chairman, it is 

bewildering that this submission comes one working day before this meeting. 

Page 40



255 
 

I will speak to the amendment in due course, but I will make the same point as I have 

done for the last 5 budget meetings, that any suggestions or recommendations need 

to be discussed with the Executive Directors and taken through the Select Committee 

process for their comment and support.  

I will also be speaking against the further resident tax they are proposing. We have 

many philanthropic residents in this county that willingly give of their time and money, 

and it is not for this council to tell them what to do. 

This is a solid, balanced budget, in the face of unprecedented pressure and challenge 

faced by local government in this country. 

But Surrey leads the way in responsible financial management. 

 

So, Mr Chairman, we look ahead. 

To a year that promises more challenges, more opportunities, more uncertainty, but 

the potential for fresh starts and new ideas. 

We will no doubt see a general election in 2024 and will look forward to continuing to 

work constructively with any new government that is formed, especially as we forge 

ahead with a County Deal and the opportunities that can bring. 

Here in Surrey, we do not simply ask for handouts, or look to Westminster to solve our 

problems. 

We roll up our sleeves and work hard to develop the right solutions for our 

communities, and in turn we are part of the solution for the country. 

Page 41



256 
 

We are determined to keep moving forward, to both get the basics right now – and right 

first time – and also to have the foresight to invest in Surrey’s future, making decisions 

now that will benefit future generations. 

That is what this budget will do, and I am proud to present it today for approval.  

But I must also recognise that this will be our Chief Executive Joanna Killian’s final 

council meeting here at Surrey, as she departs to take on the challenge of leading on 

behalf of the entire sector, as Chief Executive of the Local Government Association. 

Joanna arrived at Surrey six years ago, when the council was very different to the 

organisation it is today. 

Not only were our headquarters located outside the county, in an old, not-fit-for-

purpose building, but our financial position was close to the brink, many of our services 

were weak, the council was bloated and ultimately inefficient. 

With the wider circumstances at the time, and over the years that followed – political 

instability, uncertainty, ever-tightening public finances, a global pandemic and 

lockdowns – it is clear to see the organisation we have become under Joanna’s 

guidance. 

The fact that the LGA looked to Surrey for its new Chief Executive – and, I am told, had 

to use its considerable powers of persuasion – demonstrates the high regard in which 

this council is now held by the wider sector. 

We are industry-leading, a bastion of best practice, fuelled by high ambition and 

forward thinking. 

That is in no small part down to Joanna’s expert leadership – alongside her top team 

and the many dedicated officers we have in the organisation. 

Page 42



257 
 

I have no doubt whatsoever that the LGA will be greatly improved for Joanna’s 

presence, but I’m also confident that the trusted, stable, ambitious organisation she 

leaves behind will continue to go from strength to strength, thanks largely down to the 

solid foundations we now have in place.  

We say goodbye to Joanna with a heavy heart, but also immense pride and gratitude.  

I personally will miss her wise and constructive counsel, and I know I speak for all of 

us here when I say we will also miss you as a true friend and companion. I would ask 

all Members to show their appreciation for all that she has done these past 6 years for 

this council and for the residents of Surrey. 

 

While we recruit a permanent successor to Joanna – someone with a strong track 

record, and with energy and ambition to match our own – we plan for Leigh Whitehouse 

to take on the Chief Executive role on an interim basis. 

We know Leigh well, and I am certainly confident that he will pick up the baton and 

continue the momentum we currently have. 

And, in turn, the ever-capable Anna D’Alessandro will take on the duties of the 151 

Officer while Leigh is stepping up. 

We know what we need to do. 

We will stick to that plan. 

And we will do it. 

 

 

Page 43



This page is intentionally left blank



County Council Meeting – 19 March 2024 
 

 
 

  
 
 
 

OFFICER REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 

 
SELECT COMMITTEE FEEDBACK ON A REFERRED MOTION: 

‘ADVERTISING & SPONSORSHIP POLICY’ 

 

KEY ISSUE / DECISION: 

 
1. To provide feedback from the Greener Futures Reference Group on an 

original motion referred to this group titled ‘Advertising & Sponsorship 
Policy’ as requested at the meeting of the County Council on 11 October 
2022.  
 

2. This report sets out the conclusions of the Reference Group and invites 
Council to note its recommendation that the issue be considered by the 
Cabinet prior to award of contract for small format advertising in 2024. 

 

BACKGROUND: 

 
3. The existing Advertising and Sponsorship policy was developed and 

endorsed by Cabinet in 2019.  This was following identification of 
advertising on highways as a possible revenue stream. A number of 
advertising projects on Surrey County Council infrastructure were 
developed large scale digital advertising sites.  The Council is currently 
out to tender for a County-wide small format package with award due in 
March 2024.  This is worth approximately £500k per annum and a total 
of c. £5 million over the 10-year term of contract.  

 
4. Future changes to the existing Advertising and Sponsorship policy are 

delegated to the Head of Highways & Transport in conjunction with the 
Cabinet Member with the responsibility for Highways. 

 

5. Jonathan Essex submitted a motion to a meeting of the County Council 
held on 11 October 2022 on the topic of advertising and sponsorship 
policy. It was resolved that this Motion be referred to the Greener 
Futures Reference Group for consideration. 

6. The Motion asked Council to amend its Advertising and Sponsorship 
Policy to ban advertisements specifically for fossil fuel companies, 
flights, petrol and diesel vehicles, and other as yet, unidentified high 
carbon products. It also asked Council to promote adoption of the 
revised Advertising and Sponsorship Policy by other partners 
committed to Surrey’s Climate Change Strategy. The full text of the 
motion is at Appendix 1.  

Page 45

Item 9



 
7. The motion was referred to the GFRG on 11 October 2022 and 

considered formally at the GFRG on 8 March 2022 and subsequently 
on 30 November 2023. 

 

KEY ACTIVITIES AND ANALYSIS: 

 
8. Following the referral: 

 
➢ the GFRG had an initial discussion on the topic on 8 March 2023.   

Background information relevant to the motion was provided to 
members of the group.  There was insufficient time to fully consider 
the issue.  

➢ a service briefing report on the Motion was requested and officers 
invited to address the points made and make recommendations as 
to whether they should be endorsed.  This was circulated to the 
Group on 28 November 2023 for discussion at the 30 November 
GFRG.   

9. On 30 November 2023, the GFRG held a further discussion on the 
item, inviting contributions from both the proposer of the Motion and 
from service representatives. Officers talked members through their 
considerations and proposed responses to the Motion. In the course of 
discussion, the following key points emerged: 

 
I. Officers were concerned about the commercial implications and 

viability of any change to the existing policy and argued that 
imposing restrictions would make any potential contracts 
unfavourable to the markets.  

II. An alternative was to utilise the income gained from advertising 
(c.£0.5m pa) to progress and implement projects to improve or 
expediate the attainment of Greener Futures objectives. 

III. The GFRG was concerned that the assessment was unduly 
negative and did not take account of any benefits that a change in 
approach could bring. The focus was on commercial costs and 
concerns and not on the opportunities presented in discouraging 
consumption of high carbon products and /or seeking to advertise 
instead green or neutral carbon products and services.  

IV. The GFRG felt strongly that having declared a Climate emergency 
and committed to a NetZero target for Surrey by 2050, Surrey 
County Council should show more leadership, even if detrimental to 
revenue in the short to medium term. And that it was not acceptable 
to be enabling advertising for commercial benefit by companies or 
products in direct opposition to the Council’s net zero goals and 
aims. 

V. The primary interest of the GFRG was by definition, to protect 
greener futures interest and as such the group could not support the 
recommendation that no change be made to the advertising and 
sponsorship policy. 

Page 46



CONCLUSIONS: 

 
10. Based on the above concerns members were not able to endorse the 

recommendation that the policy remain in its current form and no steps 
taken to ban fossil fuel related and high carbon products. Conversely, 
the Greener Futures Reference Group noted their support for the 
Motion and suggested that it be looked at further by Cabinet Members, 
including the Cabinet Member for Environment and the Cabinet 
Member for Highways, Transport and Economic Growth (with 
responsibility for the current advertising and sponsorship policy) to 
ensure that environmental as well as commercial concerns are taken 
into account in future decision-making.    

11. The matter was reported to the meeting of the Communities 
Environment and Highways Select Committee on 7 February 2024.  
Committee members noted: 

- The GFRG members did not endorse the officer recommendations. 

- That officers felt any restrictions placed on advertising would 
jeopardise the contract as a whole (not just fossil-fuel or carbon 
related elements) and put the entire potential revenue stream at risk. 

- That Cabinet Members could invite officers to review and test this 
proposition. 

- The view that the Council should be using advertising space to 
positively support the Council’s NetZero agenda and to promote 
positive carbon messages and that use of a different sort of - carbon 
positive - advertising broker should be explored.  

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 
The Greener Futures Reference Group (GFRG) invites Council to note that:  

i. the GFRG did not endorse the recommendation of officers.  

ii. the GFRG recommends that the issue be considered by the 
Cabinet. 

 

Report contact 

Clare Madden, Scrutiny Officer 

Contact details 

Clare.madden@surreycc.gov.uk  

Sources/background papers 

Council Agenda – 22 October 2022 - Agenda for Council on Tuesday, 11 October 
2022, 10.00 am - Surrey County Council (surreycc.gov.uk) 

 

Page 47

mailto:Clare.madden@surreycc.gov.uk
https://mycouncil.surreycc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=121&MId=8396&Ver=4
https://mycouncil.surreycc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=121&MId=8396&Ver=4


Annexes/Appendices:  
Appendix 1 – Original Motion (below) 
Appendix 2 – Highways Service Briefing on Advertising & Sponsorship policy 
Motion  
 

Page 48



APPENDIX 1 
 

ORIGINAL MOTION – ADVERTISING & SPONSORSHIP POLICY 

Item 9 (iv)  

Under Standing Order 12.3 the Cabinet Member for Environment, Marisa Heath, 
moved a proposal. The proposal was as follows:  
 
That the motion below by Jonathan Essex be referred to the Greener Futures 
Reference Group - a Task Group of the Communities, Environment and Highways 
Select Committee - for consideration. 
 
This Council notes that: 
 

• Advertising is successful in encouraging demand for the products 
advertised. For example, research by Purpose Disruptors showed that the 
UK advertising sector, through increased product sales had the impact of 
increasing UK carbon emissions by 28% (186 MtCO2) in 2019. Similarly, 
research by the New Weather Institute indicates that the carbon emissions 
resulting from the increased demand, for cars in the EU, generated by 
advertising, are more than Belgium’s total greenhouse gas emissions. 
 

• The 2022 Climate Mitigation Report published by the Intergovernmental 
Panel on Climate Change (IPCC) highlighted the potential for behaviour 
change to support carbon emission reductions. It lists regulation of 
advertising as an example of a policy measure that can have a “major 
influence on mitigative capacity”. 

 

• In an Attitudes to Advertising poll in the UK by Opinium Research in 2022 
of 2000 people, 68% of UK adults said they would support restrictions on 
advertising of environmentally harmful products. 

 

• Advertising prohibitions and restrictions already exist; these include 
prohibition on advertising all tobacco products and e-cigarettes, guns and 
offensive weapons, ‘obscene material’. Rules also affect marketing aimed 
at children; high fat sugar and salt products; medical and health claims. 

 
This Council believes that: 

 

• Banning advertising does not ban the products themselves; people are still 
free to buy the products. 
 

• Surrey County Council has committed to work in partnership to reduce 
carbon emissions across Surrey. A baseline report by Surrey University on 
behalf of the Surrey Climate Commission showed the extent of scope 3 
emissions (in what we buy and import from outside of Surrey). One area 
where these can be reduced in Surrey is through the impact of advertising 
in public spaces. 

 

• Some advertising content undermines the Council's objectives. For 
example, petrol and diesel car adverts, especially for Sports Utility 
Vehicles, undermine air quality objectives. Airline advertising undermines 
carbon emission targets.  

Page 49

https://www.ipcc.ch/report/ar6/wg3/


 
This Council resolves to call upon the Cabinet: 
 

I. To amend its Advertising and Sponsorship Policy to ban advertisements 
specifically for fossil fuel companies, flights, petrol and diesel vehicles, and 
wording the amendment to ban other as yet unidentified high carbon products. 

 
II. To implement this revised Advertising and Sponsorship Policy internally and 

wherever possible promote its adoption by other partners committed to 
Surrey’s Climate Change Strategy. This should include restricting advertising 
of high carbon products on bus stops, billboards and advertising spaces, plus 
all publications by Surrey County Council. 

 
 

Page 50



APPENDIX 2 

COMMUNITIES, ENVIRONMENT AND HIGHWAYS SELECT 

COMMITTEE  

 

HIGHWAYS SERVICE BRIEFING ON ADVERTISING AND 

SPONSORSHIP POLICY MOTION 

Purpose of report: To brief members of the Communities, Environment and 

Highways Select Committee on the Original Motion regarding the Advertising and 

Sponsorship Policy submitted to the Council meeting on 11 October 2022. 

Introduction and background: 

1. Jonathan Essex raised a two-part Council Motion (see below) relating to the 

Advertising and Sponsorship Policy in October 2022. 

2. Cabinet Member for Environment, Marisa Heath, moved a proposal that the 

motion be referred to the Greener Futures Reference Group 

3. Jonathan Essex confirmed that he was in support of the referral of the motion to 

the Greener Futures Reference Group. 

4. The motion is directed at advertising for the whole county but Environment, 

Infrastructure and Growth, specifically Highways, has taken on responsibility to 

respond to the Motion as the service is the most advanced in progressing 

advertising opportunities. 

5. Any recommendations from the Group would apply to all the County Council 

functions and not be restricted to just Highways.  

Part 1 

Amend its Advertising and Sponsorship Policy to ban advertisements 

specifically for fossil fuel companies, flights, petrol and diesel vehicles, and 

wording the amendment to ban other as yet unidentified high carbon products. 

Page 51



6. If the content restrictions imposed by the Council effectively remove too great a 

proportion of potential advertisers, then either costs will need to be lowered (via 

a reduction of income to the Council) or in some cases the project abandoned 

altogether. 

7. If restrictions are imposed mid-term of contract this will have legal 

consequences as they will effectively undermine commercial terms and the 

assessments that informed them.  

8. If the restrictions render a site unviable, unless central government were to 

legislate against the advertising category in question (as they did in the case of 

tobacco) a media owner will simply fulfil its needs via the development of an 

alternative site.  

9. Most car companies still producing diesel/petrol cars have their own Carbon 

targets which are mirrored in the adverts they produce. 

10. Commercial “holiday” flights are high carbon impact but so too are the flights 

that, for example, bring fruit and vegetables into our country out of season. 

11. Airfreight is responsible for less than one percent of total UK food miles but it 

produces 11 percent of the carbon dioxide emissions from UK food transport, 

according to SOAS University of London.  

12. The energy and media industry are self-regulating and acutely aware of 

sensitivity around the promotion of fossil fuel products.  

13. Often organisations that engage in fossil fuel extraction and supply of 

associated products, choose only to promote their other forms of green and 

renewable energy products to encourage the market/behaviour shift that is 

required to make these sustainable.  

14. The advertising policy already stipulates that all advertising must comply with 

the following: 

1.1 Guidelines laid out by the Advertising Standards Authority (ASA) 

1.2 The rules laid out in the UK Code of Non-broadcast Advertising 

1.3 Follow the Code of recommended practice on Local Authority publicity 

Part 2 

Implement this revised Advertising and Sponsorship Policy internally and 

wherever possible promote its adoption by other partners committed to Surrey’s 

Climate Change Strategy. This should include restricting advertising of high 

Page 52

https://www.asa.org.uk/codes-and-rulings/advertising-codes/non-broadcast-code.html
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/recommended-code-of-practice-for-local-authority-publicity


carbon products on bus stops, billboards and advertising spaces, plus all 

publications by Surrey County Council. 

15. The comments above are also valid for the second part of this motion.  If the 

conclusions below are agreed, it would be inappropriate for the County Council 

to promote its adoption to other partners. 

Conclusions: 

16. There is a significant risk that a too strict and prescriptive approach to content 

will result in a greatly diluted commercial offer or media owners not bidding at 

all. 

17. The Council needs to take a pragmatic approach and balance the financial 

advantages with being mindful of advertising content. If we deviate from 

national policy as detailed by the ASA, media companies will likely choose not 

to bid. 

18. Not only will the Council have lost both a potential income and control of the site 

(which would be greater as landlord than that afforded by the statutory process) 

but the content will simply be displayed elsewhere, so rendering the exercise 

largely ineffective.  

Recommendations: 

19. A summary of the recommendation for each resolution in the motion is detailed 

in the table below:  

Resolution Service recommendation 

Amend its Advertising and 
Sponsorship Policy to ban 
advertisements specifically for fossil 
fuel companies, flights, petrol and 
diesel vehicles, and wording the 
amendment to ban other as yet 
unidentified high carbon products. 

The Council recommends that the 
policy remains in its current form. The 
policy states that all advertising has to 
comply with Guidelines laid out by the 
Advertising Standards Authority 
(ASA), the rules laid out in the UK 
Code of Non-broadcast Advertising 
and follow the Code of recommended 
practice on Local Authority publicity. 

Any further products that are added to 
the list of prohibited products to 
advertise would subsequently also be 
banned by the media owners. 

Page 53

https://www.asa.org.uk/codes-and-rulings/advertising-codes/non-broadcast-code.html
https://www.asa.org.uk/codes-and-rulings/advertising-codes/non-broadcast-code.html
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/recommended-code-of-practice-for-local-authority-publicity
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/recommended-code-of-practice-for-local-authority-publicity


There is the option of utilising the 
income gained from advertising to 
progress and implement projects that 
improve or expediate the attainment 
of our Greener Futures objectives  

 

Implement this revised Advertising 
and Sponsorship Policy internally 
and wherever possible promote its 
adoption by other partners committed 
to Surrey’s Climate Change Strategy.  

This should include restricting 
advertising of high carbon products 
on bus stops, billboards and 
advertising spaces, plus all 
publications by Surrey County 
Council 

As per the above. 

Some advertising is managed by 
others and whilst it maybe on the 
public highway it is beyond the 
County Council’s direct control.  
Examples include some Bus shelter 
contracts (managed by Districts & 
Boroughs) and telecommunication 
hubs with advertising, permitted 
through their rights as a utility 
operator 

 

 

Report contact 

Richard Bolton, Assistant Director- Highways Operations and Infrastructure 

(Environment, Infrastructure and Growth Directorate) and Highways Advertising 

Project Sponsor. 

Contact details 

Richard.bolton@surreycc.gov.uk 

Sources/background papers 

Presentation delivered to Greener Futures Members Reference Group on the 30th 

November 2023 

BBC new article published October 2023 - Why some foods have the same carbon 

footprint as 5 miles in an SUV - BBC Food 

 

Page 54

mailto:Richard.bolton@surreycc.gov.uk
https://www.bbc.co.uk/food/articles/carbon_cost_food
https://www.bbc.co.uk/food/articles/carbon_cost_food


County Council Meeting – 19 March 2024 
 

 
 

 

 

 

REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 

ESTABLISHMENT OF A JOINT HEALTH OVERVIEW & 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE (FRIMLEY PARK HOSPITAL) 

 
 

KEY ISSUE/DECISION: 

 
For Surrey County Council, in partnership with two other local authorities, 
Hampshire County Council and Bracknell Forest Council, to establish a Joint 
Health Overview & Scrutiny Committee (Frimley Park Hospital).  
 
That Surrey County Council’s health scrutiny committee provides four 
Members to serve on the Joint Committee.  
 

BACKGROUND: 

 
1 Introduction 
 
1.1 NHS Frimley Health Foundation Trust has initiated plans to replace the 

existing Frimley Park Hospital with a modern facility. As these plans will 
eventually constitute a substantial development or variation to health 
services and will affect the residents of more than one Local Authority 
the relevant Councils must establish a Joint Health Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee (JHOSC) to review and respond to plans. 
 

1.2 The first task of this Joint Committee will be to review and participate in 
the plans for a new hospital to replace Frimley Park Hospital. 
 

2 Substantial development/variation to Frimley Park Hospital 
 

2.2 The developments proposed by the Foundation Trust will constitute a 
substantial development to or variation of service provision and all 
parties – local health overview and scrutiny committees and the Trust – 
are in agreement with this classification. A substantial development or 
variation is locally defined but the key feature is that there is a major 
change to services experienced by patients and future patients. This 
could include changes to the timings or location of service resulting in 
increased travel time or costs to small number of patients or the 
complete change to local services due to a major reconfiguration, for 
example.  
 

Page 55

Item 10



2.3 As a key stakeholder and a statutory consultee Surrey County 
Council’s health scrutiny function may respond to the consultation. As 
the consultation affects residents in neighbouring Authorities regulation 
states that these Authorities must form a Joint Health Overview & 
Scrutiny Committee to review and respond to the consultation. 

 
3 Resulting action required under the Local Authority (Public 

Health, Health and Wellbeing Boards and Health Scrutiny) 
Regulations 2013 

 
3.1 Under Regulation 23, NHS England, local commissioners, public and 

independent sector providers of NHS services must consult with the 
local authority about any proposals for a substantial development or 
variation of the health service in the authority’s area. NHS Frimley 
Foundation Trust has been communicating with the Adults and Health 
Select Committee for some time on their proposals.  
 

3.2 Regulation 30 requires local authorities to appoint joint committees 
where a relevant NHS body or health service provider consults more 
than one local authority’s health scrutiny function about substantial 
reconfiguration proposals. 
 

In such circumstances, Regulation 30 sets out the following 
requirements: 

 

• Only the joint committee may respond to the consultation (i.e. 

rather than each individual local authority responding 

separately). 

• Only the joint committee may exercise the power to require the 

provision of information by the relevant NHS body or health 

service provider about the proposal. 

• Only the joint committee may exercise the power to require 

members or employees of the relevant NHS body or health 

service provider to attend before it to answer questions in 

connection with the consultation. 

 
3.3   The purpose of the JHOSC is to:  

a) make comments on the proposal consulted on  

b) require the provision of information about the proposal  

c) gather evidence from key stakeholders, including members 

of the public 

d) require the member or employee of the relevant health 

service to attend before it to answer questions in 

connection with the consultation.  

e) Request a review by the Secretary of State only on where it 

is not satisfied that:  

• consultation on any proposal for a substantial 

change or development has been adequate in 

Page 56



relation to content or time allowed (NB. The referral 

power in these contexts only relates to the 

consultation with the local authorities, and not 

consultation with other stakeholders).  

 

• the proposal would not be in the interests of the 

health service in the area. 

 

• a decision has been taken without consultation and 

it is not satisfied that the reasons given for not 

carrying out consultation are adequate. 

 
4 Governance 

 
4.1 The full Terms of Reference for the Joint Committee are listed as 

Annex A to this report. 
 
5 Financial and value for money implications  
 
5.1 Consideration should be given to the cost of the provision of 

democratic support. It is envisaged that this provision will be contained 
within existing resources and therefore will not be an additional cost to 
the Council. Responsibility will be shared on a rotating basis between 
the constituent Authorities with Surrey County Council as the 
designated Lead Authority.  

 
6 Consultation 

 
6.1 The Chairman and Vice-Chairman of the Adults and Health Select 

Committee and the Select Committee membership have been 
consulted on the proposal at their 7 March 2024 public meeting and 
have offered full support for the establishment of the joint committee.  

 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 
1. The County Council agrees to the establishment of the Joint Health 

Overview & Scrutiny Committee (Frimley Park Hospital) with effect 
from 19 March 2024 for the duration of the rebuilding programme 
(expected to be 10 years). 
 

2. The County Council be represented by four Members of its health 
scrutiny committee, including its Chairman on the Joint Committee; 
and its membership be confirmed at the Council meeting on 19 
March 2024.  

 
3. Any consequential amendments are made to the Council’s 

Constitution as required. 
 

Page 57



REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 
1 To ensure readiness to undertake review of proposals and 

respond to the Trust’s public consultation. 

 

2 To ensure robust scrutiny of the NHS Foundation Trust’s plans 

and consultation process. 
 

3 To strengthen Surrey residents’ voices in the consultation and 

ensure their interests are considered by decision makers.  
 

WHAT HAPPENS NEXT: 

 

• Implementation of the recommendation with four Members from the 
Council’s health scrutiny committee including the Chairman taking 
positions on the Joint Committee.  

 

• A first meeting of the Committee is provisionally planned for April 
2024. 

 

 
 
Contact Officer: 
Ross Pike, Scrutiny Business Manager, Democratic Services  
Telephone: 07805 803 593; Email: ross.pike@surreycc.gov.uk  
 
Sources/background papers: 
The Local Authority (Public Health, Health and Wellbeing Boards and Health 
Scrutiny) Regulations 2013 
 
Local Authority Health Scrutiny Guidance (Department of Health and Social 
Care) updated 9 January 2024: Local authority health scrutiny - GOV.UK 
(www.gov.uk) 
 

 

Page 58

mailto:ross.pike@surreycc.gov.uk
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/advice-to-local-authorities-on-scrutinising-health-services/local-authority-health-scrutiny
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/advice-to-local-authorities-on-scrutinising-health-services/local-authority-health-scrutiny


Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee (Frimley Park)  

Draft Terms of Reference 

 

 

Purpose  

 

1. Health Services are required to consult a local authority’s Health Overview 

and Scrutiny Committee about any proposals they have for a substantial 

development or variation in the provision of health services in their area. 

When these substantial developments or variations affect a geographical area 

that covers more than one local authority, the local authorities are required to 

appoint a Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee (JHOSC) for the 

purposes of the consultation. (Where those authorities consider the change a 

‘substantial’ change). 

 

2. These terms of reference set out the arrangements for Hampshire County 

Council, Surrey County Council and Bracknell Forest Borough Council to 

operate a JHOSC in line with the provisions set out in legislation and 

guidance.  

 

Terms of Reference  

 

3.  The JHOSC will operate formally as a statutory joint committee i.e. where  

the councils have been required under Regulation 30 (5) Local Authority  

(Public Health, Health and Well-being Boards and Health Scrutiny)  

Regulations 2013 to appoint a joint committee for the purposes of providing  

independent scrutiny to the Frimley Park programme.  

 

4.  The purpose of the JHOSC is to:  

a) make comments on the proposal consulted on  

b) require the provision of information about the proposal  

c) gather evidence from key stakeholders, including members of the 

public 

d) require the member or employee of the relevant health service to 

attend before it to answer questions in connection with the 

consultation.  

e) Request a review by the Secretary of State only on where it is not 

satisfied that:  

• consultation on any proposal for a substantial change or 

development has been adequate in relation to content or 

time allowed (NB. The referral power in these contexts only 

relates to the consultation with the local authorities, and not 

consultation with other stakeholders)  

• the proposal would not be in the interests of the health 

service in the area  

Annex A 

Page 59



• a decision has been taken without consultation and it is not 

satisfied that the reasons given for not carrying out 

consultation are adequate 

 

5.  With the exception of those matters referred to in paragraph [4] above  

responsibility for all other health scrutiny functions and activities remain with  

the respective local authority Health Scrutiny Committees.  

 

Governance  

 

6.  Meetings of the JHOSC will be conducted in accordance with the Standing  

Orders of the host Local Authority (Surrey County Council). 

 

Host authority 

 

7.  The JHOSC will be hosted by Surrey County Council. However, the 

administration of meetings will be shared amongst the three local authorities. 

 

Membership  

 

8.  Membership of the JHOSC will be appointed by the respective Local  

Authorities and their appointments notified to the host authority. A Local  

Authority may amend their appointments to the JHOSC, and this will take  

effect when formal notification has been received by the host authority.   

 

9.  Each member of the JHOSC must be a properly elected Councillor to a seat  

on their respective authority and will cease to be a member of the JHOSC  

with immediate effect should they no longer meet this requirement.   

 

10. Seats on the JHOSC are allocated in proportion of patients from each area 

attending the Frimley Park Hospital.  

 

Accordingly, the JHOSC will comprise 10 voting Members, with 4 being 

appointed by Hampshire County Council, 4 by Surrey County Council, 2 by 

Bracknell Forest Council.  

 

11. Appointments by each authority to the JHOSC will reflect the political balance  

of that authority.  

 

12. The quorum for meetings will be 3 voting members. 

 

13. Local Members for the divisions closest to Frimley Park Hospital (and any 

new location if different) will be invited to meetings of the Joint Committee as 

non-voting observers. 

Page 60



14. If additional Local Authorities wish to join the Joint Committee in future, 

provided they are being consulted by the NHS on this topic, 1 seat per 

authority would be provided, subject to approval by that Local Authority.  

 

Chair & Vice Chair 

 

15. The Chair of the JHOSC for the duration of the Committee shall be  

elected at its first formal meeting and drawn from those Members in  

attendance at that meeting. Should the Chair cease to be a member of  

the JHOSC, a new Chair shall be elected at the next formal meeting.  

 

16. The Vice-Chair of the JHOSC for the duration of the Committee shall be  

elected at its first formal meeting and drawn from those Members in  

attendance at that meeting. In the absence of the Chair, the Vice Chair shall 

assume all of the Chairs’ responsibilities. Should the Vice-Chair cease to be a 

member of the JHOSC, a new Vice-Chair shall be elected at the next formal 

meeting.  

 

17. In the absence of both the Chair and Vice-Chair at any Meeting of  

the JHOSC, Members in attendance shall appoint a Chair for that meeting 

from amongst their number, who shall, while presiding at that  

meeting, have any power or duty of the Chair in relation to the conduct of  

the meeting. 

 

Task & Finish Groups 

 

18. The Committee may appoint such Working Groups of their members as they  

may determine to undertake and report back to the Joint Committee on 

specified investigations or reviews. Appointments to such Working Groups will 

be made by the Committee, ensuring political balance as far as possible. 

Such working groups will exist for a fixed period, on the expiry of which they 

shall cease to exist. 

 

Committee support  

 

19. The responsibility for overall coordination, facilitation of meetings, policy 

support and other administrative arrangements will be undertaken by the host 

authority, but arrangements may be delegated between the Local Authorities. 

 

20. Meetings of the committee will be arranged and held by the host authority in  

accordance with Access to Information Regulations and other relevant  

legislation.  

 

21. Communications with the media will be led by the host authority on behalf of  

the JHOSC.  

 

Page 61



22. Legal advice and support to the JHOSC will be provided by the host authority.  

 

Meetings 

 

23.  The JHOSC will meet as often as required to fulfil its purpose, which is likely  

to include: 

• An initial meeting to establish and set the scene of the proposals; 

• a meeting to comment on the planned public consultation process; 

• a meeting to monitor the consultation process and response  

• a meeting to comment on the results of the public consultation and any 

 further relevant analysis of the options; and  

• a meeting to agree whether to support the proposed outcome 

 

24. Dates for meetings will be arranged in advance and notified by the host  

authority.  

 

25. Meetings of the JHOSC will be avoided during the county council pre-election 

period (late March through to early May 2025) if possible.  

 

26. Once the purpose of the JHOSC has been fulfilled, the Committee will cease. 

 

Reporting 

 

27. Members of the JHOSC may provide updates to their Local Authority on its  

proceedings in accordance with the requirements of their respective authority.  

 

28. Any recommendations of the JHOSC will be published and communicated to  

relevant parties by the host authority. 

Page 62



County Council Meeting – 19 March 2024 
 

 
 

 
OFFICER REPORT TO COUNCIL 

 

SELECT COMMITTEES’ REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 

 

KEY ISSUE/DECISION: 

 
For Members to note the headline activity of the Council’s overview and 
scrutiny function in the period October 2023 to February 2024 asking 
questions of Scrutiny Chairs as necessary. 
 

BACKGROUND: 

 
As part of the ongoing process to raise standards in the Council’s overview 
and scrutiny function and to raise the profile of the work of Select Committees 
more generally, Chairs agreed to regularly report activity to Council three 
times a year.  
 

SUMMARY OF ACTIVITY: 

 
In the period October 2023 to February 2024 the principal output of the 
Council’s overview and scrutiny function was its budget scrutiny report to 
Cabinet in December 2023. This was supplemented by further 
recommendations from the Budget Task Group that included the four Select 
Committee Chairs among its membership.  
 
Adults and Health Select Committee 
 
The Committee met twice in public during this period:  
 
4 October 2023 to consider the following items: Surrey Heartlands: Managing 
Urgent and Emergency Care Surge 2023/24, South East Coast Ambulance 
Service NHS Foundation Trust: Winter Preparedness, NHS Frimley: Accident 
& Emergency Waiting Times & Pressures. 
 
7 December 2023: Scrutiny of 2024/25 Draft Budget and Medium-Term 
Financial Strategy To 2028/29, Adult Safeguarding Update, and A New 
Hospital to Replace Frimley Park Hospital. 
 
As a result of the plans to replace the existing Frimley Park Hospital the 
Council has had to create a Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee to 
review plans with neighbouring Local Authorities also affected by the project, 

Page 63

Item 11

https://mycouncil.surreycc.gov.uk/documents/s95138/UPDATED%20Select%20Committee%20Budget%20Report%20to%20Cabinet%20-Dec%2024_.pdf
https://mycouncil.surreycc.gov.uk/documents/s95397/FINAL%20Budget%20Task%20Group%20Report%20to%20Cabinet%20-Jan%2024.pdf
https://mycouncil.surreycc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=790&MId=8879&Ver=4
https://mycouncil.surreycc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=790&MId=8880&Ver=4


Hampshire County Council and Bracknell Forest Council. The terms of 
reference and membership of this new Committee are elsewhere in this 
agenda (Item 10).  
 
Children, Families, Lifelong Learning & Culture 
 
The Committee met three times in this period: 
 
2 October 2023 to consider the following items: Education, Health and Care 
Plan Timeliness Recovery Plan, Commissioning Within Children, Families and 
Lifelong Learning, Children's Homes - Ofsted Reports Published Since The 
Last Meeting of the Select Committee, and Performance Overview. 
 
6 December 2023:  Home to School Travel Update, Scrutiny of 2024/25 Draft 
Budget and Medium-Term Financial Strategy To 2028/29, Children's Homes - 
Ofsted Reports Published Since the Last Meeting of the Select Committee, 
and Performance Overview. 
 
15 February 2024: Alternative Provision, Foster Carer Sufficiency, Children's 
Homes - Ofsted Reports Published Since the Last Meeting of the Select 
Committee, and Performance Overview. 
 
In addition to this work the Committee has set up a Task & Finish Group 
chaired by Jeremy Webster focusing on the parent/carer experience of 
services for children and young people with Additional Needs and Disabilities. 
The Group has met a number of times and created a Surrey Says page to 
gather evidence for its review.  
 
Communities, Environment & Highways Select Committee 
 
The Committee met three times during this period: 
 
5 October 2023 to consider: Climate Change Delivery Plan Annual Update 
Surrey and the Surrey Transport Plan (Ltp4) Delivery Plan. 
 
4 December 2023: Scrutiny of 2024/25 Draft Budget and Medium-Term 
Financial Strategy To 2028/29, Surrey Fire and Rescue Service Performance 
Report & HMICFRS Inspection, New Draft Vision Zero Road Safety Strategy 
And 20 Mph Speed Limit Policy, Referral from Council - Will Forster Motion on 
Vision Zero, and Partnerships Prosperity & Growth Update. 
 
Recommendations were made to Cabinet on the first three items listed at the 
December 2023 meeting, the majority of which were accepted. Reported here.  
 
7 February 2024: Environment, Transport and Infrastructure (ETI) 
Performance Report, Advertising and Sponsorship Policy Motion, and the 
Minerals and Waste Local Plan. 
 

Page 64

https://mycouncil.surreycc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=791&MId=8916&Ver=4
https://mycouncil.surreycc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=791&MId=8917&Ver=4
https://mycouncil.surreycc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=791&MId=8918&Ver=4
https://mycouncil.surreycc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=783&MId=8988&Ver=4
https://mycouncil.surreycc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=783&MId=8993&Ver=4
https://members.surreycc.gov.uk/documents/b29129/Cabinet-Supplementary%20Agenda%20Tuesday%2019-Dec-2023%2014.00%20Cabinet.pdf?T=9
https://mycouncil.surreycc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=783&MId=9211&Ver=4


In addition to this work the Committee has started work on a special series of 
sessions with utility providers. The first session focused on water providers. 
The outcome of this meeting will be reported to Cabinet on 26 March 2024. 
 
Resources & Performance Select Committee 
 
The Committee will have met in public three times in this period: 
 
18 October 2023 to consider: Digital Business & Insights (DB&I) – Status 
Report and Lessons Learnt Approach, Strategic Investment Board Annual 
Report - Financial Year 2022/23 & Property Portfolio (Part 2 Report) 
 
8 December 2023: Scrutiny of 2024/25 Draft Budget and Medium-Term 
Financial Strategy to 2028/29 and Performance Monitoring Session Notes 28 
September 2023. 
 
12 March 2024: Removal of Payroll Service from Multi Academy Trusts 
(MATs) And Academies, Equality, Diversity And Inclusion Update and 
Performance Monitoring Session Notes. 
 
In addition to this work the Committee has set up a Task & Finish Group 
chaired by Steven McCormick to review the implementation of the MySurrey 
software and the lessons learned from this experience. The Group has been 
interviewing witnesses since February.  
 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 
1. That Council review the work summarised in this report providing 

feedback to Scrutiny Chairs as appropriate. 
 
 

 
Lead/Contact Officers: Ross Pike, Scrutiny Business Manager, Democratic 
Services, Surrey County Council, ross.pike@surreycc.gov.uk  
 
Sources/background papers:  
 
Select Committee and Cabinet Agenda and Minutes:  
Committee structure - Surrey County Council (surreycc.gov.uk) 
 
 
 

 
 

Page 65

https://mycouncil.surreycc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=784&MId=8968&Ver=4
https://mycouncil.surreycc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=784&MId=8964&Ver=4
https://mycouncil.surreycc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=784&MId=9222&Ver=4
mailto:ross.pike@surreycc.gov.uk
https://mycouncil.surreycc.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1


This page is intentionally left blank



County Council Meeting – 19 March 2024 
 

 
 

 
OFFICER REPORT TO COUNCIL 

 

ANNUAL REPORT TO COUNCIL – MEMBER DEVELOPMENT 
 

 

KEY ISSUE/DECISION: 

 
Members play an essential role in setting, and maintaining, the strategic 
direction of the council. They also act as community leaders and provide an 
essential interface between the council and Surrey residents. It is therefore 
important that the council invests in the development of its members, 
providing them with the knowledge and tools to enable them to perform their 
roles effectively. 

 
This report provides an annual overview of the council’s approach to member 
development, to provide assurance that the current approach is effective and 
equitable. 
 

BACKGROUND: 

 
1. All Member development activity is monitored by the Member 

Development Steering Group (MDSG). The MDSG is cross party, and 
the current membership is Mark Nuti (Chairman), Harry Boparai, Helyn 
Clack, Robert Evans OBE, Tim Hall, David Lewis (Cobham), Catherine 
Powell, Chris Townsend and Hazel Watson, with the potential for a 
change of membership on an annual basis.  

 
2. The group meets informally, six times a year, to oversee the delivery of 

the Member Development Programme and other councillor support 
issues. 
 

MEMBER DEVELOPMENT SESSIONS 

 
3. Since May 2020, Member Development Sessions have been held 

online. This was initially a response to the Covid-19 pandemic and 
lockdown measures, but the results of the Member Agile Working 
Survey demonstrated that members felt the sessions should continue 
to be held remotely. This enables members and officers to work in a 
more agile way, reducing travel time and costs, and contributing to the 
council’s Greener Futures priority through a reduced environmental 
impact. 
 

Page 67

Item 12



4. The average attendance at Member Development Sessions since July 
2022 to the end of 2023 has been 25% of members. Any slides 
presented at session are now shared in advance to members, and 
recordings of sessions are available on the Member Portal Teams 
channel for any members unable to attend “live” together with a copy of 
the slides from each session. 
 

5. Two in-person Member Development days were held in 2023, to give 
members the opportunity to attend collaborative and interactive 
sessions which are not possible online. The first day, held in February 
2023, was attended by 21 councillors (26%). The second day, held in 
October 2023, offered an option for half-day attendance for Members, 
and was attended by 20 councillors (25%). 
 

6. A summary of the member development sessions provided since July 
22 can be found in Appendix 1. 

 

MEMBER REFERENCE LIBRARY 

 
7. Research work has been undertaken in 2023 to review the usage of the 

Member Portal, held on the Microsoft Teams platform alongside any 
barriers. The accessibility of available information was also considered 
to ensure members were able to self-serve effectively. 
 

8. At the November 2023 meeting, the MDSG agreed with the 
recommendations from the research confirming that the Member Portal 
was most suited as a repository of information and not a primary 
means of communication or collaboration space. To address the lack of 
understanding and mix of expectations about the purpose of the 
channel, it will be renamed to ‘Member Reference Library’. 
 

9. Work is currently underway to review material stored on the current 
Member Portal. Retained material will be migrated to a new Teams 
site, in Spring 2024, with improved file storage to aid retrieval of 
information by members.  

 
 

DIGITAL SKILLS TRAINING 

 
10. In July 2023, the MDSG requested a clearer roadmap for continuous 

development of members’ digital skills. Democratic Services have 
collaborated with IT & Digital to develop an offer that can be tailored to 
individual skills levels and embedded into long term business as usual 
activities, as opposed to limited ad-hoc training. 
 

11. As part of ‘tailoring to different needs’ it was agreed to undertake a 
digital skills self-assessment through a training needs survey. A Digital 
Skills audit survey was run for members throughout October 2023, with 
members offered the opportunity to feedback through electronic or 
paper versions with 28 members responding (35%). 

Page 68



 
12. IT & Digital are responding to the themes that came out of the member 

digital skills survey and are in the process of developing a selection of 
member specific training sessions and videos.   

 

MYSURREY 

 
13. Democratic Services worked closely with the MySurrey team to deliver 

bespoke member training for the new system. 48 members (60%) 
attended the formal training sessions, with Democratic Services 
offering additional one to one training for any members that required it.  
 

EXTERNAL TRAINING 

 
14. All members are entitled to request training and development support. 

Our first port of call will always be to see what can be offered in-house 
however sometimes a training need cannot be met in-house and 
councillors can request to attend external training and conferences. To 
ensure that such training requests are dealt with equitably, members 
are asked to complete a short external training request form detailing 
how the course will support their development as a councillor. 
 

15. The LGA runs a range of relevant training courses for councillors which 
are regularly promoted by the Member Services Manager to members.  
 

16. In June 2023 the Centre for Good Scrutiny (CfGS) was commissioned 
to run some bespoke training courses for Surrey to ensure that 
members were all equipped with the required skills to enable them to 
effectively scrutinise decisions. The first session was for Select 
Committee Chairs & Vice-Chairs, and the second session was for all 
members of Select Committees. 

 

CHARTER PLUS ACREDITATION 

  
17. Surrey has been accredited with the Local Government Association 

(LGA) ‘Charter Plus’ status in 2018 and 2021, in recognition of the 
standard of member development and support offered. Assessment 
recommendations are monitored by the MDSG, with reaccreditation 
due in Autumn 2024. 

 

SUMMARY OF PRIORITIES FOR  2024/25 

 
18. The MDSG has set out a number of priorities for 2024/25. These 

include: 
 

• Deliver the 2025 Be A Surrey County Councillor campaign. 
Through a series of countywide events, promote awareness of the 
role of a councillor to encourage residents to consider standing for 
election. 

Page 69



 

• Undertake a series of mid-term Member Conversations. These 
will be an opportunity for members to have an individual 
conversation with a manager in Democratic Services to discuss how 
they are finding their role, any training or support they feel would be 
beneficial and suggestions for the 2025 induction plans. 
 

• Review of the Member Development Strategy. The Member 
Development Strategy is reviewed on a biennial basis, with the next 
review now due. There is an opportunity to use feedback from 
member conversations and to ensure alignment with 
organsisational policies, such as the People Strategy. 

 

• Prepare for the induction of the 2025 member cohort. Gather 
feedback from current members on key elements for inclusion in the 
induction so that members are supported in their roles and 
effectively able to undertake their duties. This will also consider the 
introduction of more in-person and informal networking 
opportunities, alongside virtual training. 

 

• Launch the Member Reference Library. Continue with work 
started in 2023 to review the content of the current Member Portal, 
ensuring that required information is easily retrievable by members.   

 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 
That Council endorses the current approach to member development and 
agrees that it is equitable and effective. 
 

 
Lead/Contact Officers:  
  
Anna Miller, Member Services Manager 
anna.miller@surreycc.gov.uk  
07976 385177 
 
Sources/background papers:  
Appendix 1: Member Development Sessions July 22 - December 2023 
 
 

 
 

Page 70

mailto:anna.miller@surreycc.gov.uk


Date Topic 
Attendance 

rate 

4 Jul 2022 River Thames Scheme 19% 

11 Jul 2022 Electoral Review Briefing 37% 

18 Jul 2022 Expansion of Ultra-Low Emission Zones 26% 

5 Sep 2022 Unwanted Automatic Fire Alarm Signals 23% 

23 Sep 2022 
An Accommodation, Housing and Homes 

strategy for Surrey 
27% 

26 Sep 2022 Cost of Living 22% 

3 Oct 2022 Bus Back Better 28% 

10 Oct 2022 ASC Charging Reforms 36% 

17 Nov 2022 Education Reforms and No One Left Behind 28% 

24 Oct 2022 A County Deal for Surrey 36% 

14 Nov 2022 Delivering Our Tree Planting Programme 28% 

21 Nov 2022 Decision Making on Rights of Way Matters 21% 

28 Nov 2022 Climate Change Adaptation 27% 

9 Jan 2023 
Armed Forces Covenant and Armed Forces Act 

2021 
21% 

16 Jan 2023 SEND and Short Breaks 30% 

23 Jan 2023 YFS Small Community Fund 48% 

30 Jan 2023 Housing, Accommodation and Homes Strategy 31% 

6 Feb 2023 Delivering Partnerships in Towns 33% 

13 Feb 2023 EV Infrastructure 31% 

20 Feb 2023 Member Development Day 26% 

27 Feb 2023 Climate Change Adaptation 28% 

6 Mar 2023 Children’s Homes 30% 

20 Mar 2023 Agile Organisation Programme 30% 

27 Mar 2023 Parking and Traffic Enforcement 40% 

17 Apr 2023 Chatbots at SCC 14% 

22 May 2023 Member Casework 16% 

5 Jun 2023 Surrey Hills AONB 25% 

19 Jun 2023 Cost of Living 30% 

Appendix 1 

Page 71



26 Jun 2023 People Strategy 2023-2028 26% 

3 Jul 2023 Home to School transport 25% 

10 Jul 2023 Budget 2024/25 and MTFS to 2028/29 38% 

17 Jul 2023 Freedom to Travel 22% 

18 Jul 2023 Electronic expenses & MySurrey 16% 

24 Jul 2023 SEND pathways 26% 

4 Sep 2023 
Engaging communities in the greener futures 

programme 
26% 

18 Sep 2023 Data Strategy 1 23% 

25 Sep 2023 Corporate Parenting 21% 

16 Oct 2023 Our Surrey Story 21% 

20 Oct 2023 Member Development Day 25% 

30 Oct 2023 Gatwick Northern Runway Project 26% 

13 Nov 2023 Netzero Landscape 11% 

20 Nov 2023 Draft Budget 2024/25 and MTFS to 2028/29 27% 

27 Nov 2023 Data Strategy 2 15% 

18 Dec 2023 Healthy Streets 23% 

 

Page 72



 

County Council Meeting – 19 March 2024 
 

REPORT OF THE CABINET 
 
The Cabinet met on 27 February 2024. 
   
In accordance with the Constitution, Members can ask questions of the 
appropriate Cabinet Member, seek clarification or make a statement on any of 
these issues without giving notice. 
 
The minutes containing the individual decisions for the meeting above have been 
included within the original agenda at Item 14. If any Member wishes to raise a 
question or make a statement on any of the matters in the minutes, notice must 
be given to Democratic Services by 12 noon on the last working day before the 
County Council meeting (Monday 18 March 2024). 
 
For members of the public all non-confidential reports are available on the web 
site (www.surreycc.gov.uk) or on request from Democratic Services. 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS ON POLICY FRAMEWORK DOCUMENTS 

 
There were no reports with recommendations for Council. 

 

REPORTS FOR INFORMATION / DISCUSSION 

 
At its meeting on 27 February 2024 Cabinet considered: 
 
A. PROMOTING AND SUPPORTING SUSTAINABLE ECONOMIC GROWTH IN 

SURREY (LEP INTEGRATION) 
 

From April 2024, the Government will cease providing funding to Local Enterprise 
Partnerships (LEPs) and the functions previously held by LEPs will transfer to 
Upper Tier Local Authorities (UTLAs). This report highlighted the key progress that 
had been made with the other UTLAs and LEPs on the disaggregation of 
programmes, funding, liabilities, and assets, outlines any outstanding issues, and 
provided more specific details on the implications of the latest government guidance 
and funding. 
 
It was AGREED: 

 
1. That Cabinet approves the council becoming an “Accountable Body” from 1 April 

2024 for the purposes of collaborating with government on an integration plan 
and assurance for delivery of core LEP functions and government programmes 
across Surrey.  
 

2. That Cabinet notes that from 1st April 2024 SCC will be recognised by 
Government as the lead for strategic economic planning and the delivery of 
economic growth functions in Surrey that were previously undertaken by LEPs. 
The new functions and responsibilities will be integrated within SCC’s existing 
economic growth function. 
 

Page 73

Item 13



 

 

3. That Cabinet notes the progress made in transitioning LEP functions to the 
County Council from April 2024, through engagement with stakeholders, 
including relevant upper tier local authorities, Enterprise M3 LEP and Coast to 
Capital LEP. 
 

4. That Cabinet delegates authority for concluding the work of transitioning LEP 
functions to the County Council from April 2024 to the Interim Executive Director 
for Customers and Communities and the council's Section 151 Officer, in 
conjunction with the Executive Director for Environment, Infrastructure and 
Growth, and in consultation with the Cabinet member for Environment, 
Infrastructure and Growth. 

 
Reasons for decisions: 
 
To bring the significant strategic decision of the government and its consequent 
implications and opportunities to the attention of Cabinet and to ensure a smooth 
and effective approach to the transfer and integration of LEP functions for Surrey 
into the County Council.  

 
B. PROVISION OF PRIMARY SCHOOL PLACES IN THE PLANNING AREA OF 

REIGATE 
 
Cabinet was asked to make a decision regarding the future of primary school 
provision in Reigate. 
 
It was AGREED: 
 

1. That Cabinet pursue option 2, establishing a working group to explore 

reorganisation for the Reigate Primary Planning Area.  

2. That Cabinet agree the timescales and scope for the working group as outlined 

in Annex 1. 

3. That Cabinet agree to delegate authority to the Director of Land & Property in 

conjunction with the Executive Director of Children Families and Lifelong 

Learning to commission initial desk-based viability studies up to £0.6m. 

4. That Cabinet pursue the determination of the live planning application 

(Reference RE22/01796CON) for option 1, to establish if this is a viable option.  

Reasons for decisions: 
 
As the majority of respondents to the consultation selected option 2, the 
recommendations are to continue to look for alternative solutions and pursue 
option 2 by establishing a working group to explore re-organisation options as set 
out in recommendation 1.  
 
It has not been possible to identify any potentially viable sites other than 
Woodhatch Place, or to identify a solution for Reigate Priory Junior School (RPJS) 
to remain a 600-place junior school on the current site for the reasons set out in 
Annex 2 of this report. The working group will look at re-organisation options to 
provide sufficient school places in the area. Possibilities could include the 
Woodhatch site and the existing school sites, including the potential for a smaller 
school at Priority Park and other potential sites. The evaluation criteria are set out 

Page 74



 

 

at Annex 1, this includes the need for any solution under Option 2 to be 
comparable in cost to Option 1. Cabinet Agreement for the timescales and scope 
of the working Group is sought under recommendation 2. More information about 
the role, functions and scope of the working group and timescales is available in 
Annex 1: Working Group Terms of Reference. 
 
Surrey County Council would not ordinarily recommend a closure of a school that 
provides quality education and continues to meet the needs of local pupils, 
however, school closure or school closure as part of an amalgamation may be 
considered by the working group, if an alternative cannot be found, or if a school 
no longer meets the needs of children.  
 
Recommendation 3 ensures relevant delegated authority to ensure sufficient 
feasibility is completed for any solution identified by the working group. There may 
be feasibility studies across multiple schools as part of the agreed option. The 
original site search for a 5FE (5 Form Entry) Junior school may be refreshed 
alongside any additional site search as part of option 2. 
 
There is no guarantee of finding viable options and this process will further delay a 
secure future for RPJS. To ensure a continuity of sufficient school places for 
children and young people in Reigate, it would be sensible and reasonable that, as 
set out in Recommendation 4, Surrey County Council pursues determination of the 
live planning application to relocate Reigate Priory Junior School to Woodhatch 
Place, (Ref RE22/01796CON), by submitting additional information to address the 
issues identified by the Planning and Regulatory Committee when referring it back 
to the applicants. This is in order to fully understand if this option is a viable 
solution.  
 
Recommendation 4 relates only to proceeding to determination of the planning 
permission. This is to keep all possible options open for consideration at this time 
and as a back-up if an alternative cannot be identified or if a more urgent need 
arises to re-locate RPJS from the current site. This is because of the uncertainties 
in making all the changes which may be necessary under option 2 and doing so 
within a reasonable time frame. 
 
A further decision will be required by Cabinet later in 2024 to determine  
how to proceed, taking into consideration the recommendations of the working 
group and the outcome of the planning application. 

 
C. LOCAL GOVERNMENT AND SOCIAL CARE OMBUDSMAN PUBLIC REPORT 

REGARDING CONCERNS ABOUT THE DELIVERY OF EDUCATION FOR 
CHILDREN WITH ADDITIONAL NEEDS AND DISABILITIES (SEND)   
 
The purpose of this report was to bring to Members’ attention a public report which 
has been issued by the Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman. 

 
It was AGREED: 

 
1. That Cabinet considers the Ombudsman’s report and the steps that have been 

taken by the Service to address the findings;  
2. That Cabinet considers whether any other action should be taken; and   

Page 75



 

 

3. That Cabinet notes that the Monitoring Officer will be bringing this report to the 
attention of all Members of the Council.   

Reasons for decisions: 
 
There is a statutory requirement for the Monitoring Office to bring to Members’ 
attention any public report issued by the Ombudsman about the Council which 
identifies it is at fault and has caused injustice as a result. 
 

D. SFRS FIRE HOUSE AND TRAINING FACILITY 

Cabinet approval was requested for capital expenditure to redevelop the SFRS fire 
house and training provision and deliver a new facility which would be capable of 
providing crucial training for new staff and will facilitate the ongoing training of the 
existing operational personnel. 
 
It was AGREED: 
 

1. That Cabinet approves capital funding from the pipeline to redevelop the Surrey 

Fire and Rescue Service (SFRS) fire house and training facility and design and 

construct a new fire house and training facility on the existing site. The capital 

funding required to develop the new facilities is commercially sensitive at this 

time and is set out in the Part 2 report. 

2. That Cabinet approves procurement of appropriate supply chain partners to 

deliver the design, build and fit out of the new structures in accordance with the 

Council’s Procurement and Contract Standing Orders. 

3. That Cabinet notes that, regarding the procurement of supply chain partners, 

the Executive Director for Environment, Infrastructure and Growth and the 

Director of Land and Property are authorised to award such contracts, up to 

+5% of the budgetary tolerance level and any other legal documentation 

required to facilitate the approvals within this report. 

Reasons for decisions: 
 
Essential capital investment is required to enable the redevelopment of one of the 

SFRS critical assets – SFRS live fire training facility.  

 

The existing fire house and drill towers at this facility are reaching the end of their 

useful life. Parts for the ventilation system are no longer readily available due to 

this type of system being obsolete, requiring replacement parts to be refurbished 

or remade from second hand items. This has resulted in significant periods when 

the facility is non-operational.  

 

There are several significant Health and Safety (H&S) concerns including internal 

linings falling from the ceiling, insufficient smoke extraction and ventilation which 

demonstrate that the facility is no longer fit for purpose. 
 
 
 

Page 76



 

 

E. QUARTERLY REPORT ON DECISIONS TAKEN UNDER SPECIAL URGENCY 
ARRANGEMENTS: 3 February 2024 - 11 March 2024 
 
The Cabinet is required under the Constitution to report to Council on a quarterly 
basis the details of decisions taken by the Cabinet and Cabinet Members under 
the special urgency arrangements set out in Standing Order 57 of the Constitution.  
This occurs where a decision is required on a matter that is not contained within 
the Leader’s Forward Plan (Notice of Decisions), nor available 5 clear days before 
the meeting.  Where a decision on such matters could not reasonably be delayed, 
the agreement of the Chairman of the appropriate Select Committee, or in his/her 
absence the Chairman of the Council, must be sought to enable the decision to be 
made. 
 
The Cabinet RECOMMENDS that the County Council notes that there have 
been NO urgent decisions since the last Cabinet report to Council. 

 
 

Tim Oliver, Leader of the Council 
11 March 2024 

Page 77



This page is intentionally left blank



136 
 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE CABINET 
HELD ON 27 FEBRUARY 2024 AT 2.00 PM 

AT COUNCIL CHAMBER, WOODHATCH PLACE, 11 COCKSHOT HILL, 
REIGATE, SURREY ,RH2 8EF. 

 
These minutes are subject to confirmation by the Cabinet at its next meeting. 
 
Members: (*present) 
  
*Tim Oliver (Chairman) 
*Natalie Bramhall 
*Clare Curran 
*Matt Furniss 
*David Lewis 
*Mark Nuti 
*Denise Turner-Stewart 
*Sinead Mooney 
*Marisa Heath 
*Kevin Deanus 

 

 
Deputy Cabinet Members: 
 
 Maureen Attewell 
*Paul Deach 
Jordan Beech 
*Steve Bax 
 
Members in attendance: 
 
Catherine Powell, Residents' Association and Independent Group Leader 
Fiona Davidson, Chairman of the Children, Families, Lifelong Learning and 
Culture Select Committee 
 
 
 

PART ONE 
IN PUBLIC 

 
18/24 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  [Item 1] 

 
Apologies were received from Maureen Attewell and Jordan Beech.  
 

19/24 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING: 30 JANUARY 2024  [Item 2] 
 
These were agreed as a correct record of the meeting. 
 

20/24 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  [Item 3] 
 
There were none. 
 

21/24 PROCEDURAL MATTERS  [Item 4] 
 
 

21/241 MEMBERS' QUESTIONS  [Item 4a] 
 

Page 79

Item 14



137 
 

There were six member questions. The questions and responses were 
published in a supplement to the agenda. 
 
With regards to her first question, Catherine Powell asked if the Cabinet 
Member could confirm if Members could be informed along with the District 
and Borough leadership of when the process to broaden the number of 
businesses represented at the Surrey Business Leaders Forum would begin. 
The Cabinet Member for Highways, Transport and Economic Growth agreed 
to this explaining that he wanted as many small and medium businesses 
involved with the Surrey Business Leaders Forum. With regards to her second 
question, the Member asked if the Surrey Growth Hub would be in a physical 
location or entirely online. The Cabinet Member for Highways, Transport and 
Economic Growth stated that the team would probably be based in Reigate 
with majority of meetings online. That nature of their work meant the team 
would be flexible and would go out to meet businesses. With regards to her 
third question, the Member asked if the Leader would also contact the 
Chancellor regarding the extension of the Household Support Grant. The 
Leader stated that he was reasonably confident that the grant would be 
extended and had lobbied both the Chancellor and the Secretary of State for 
Levelling Up, Housing and Communities. With regards to her final question, 
the Member stated that the charities who are delivering the affected services 
were already raising concerns locally and looking for alternative funding 
streams. She asked if the Cabinet Member would keep this issue under 
consideration. The Cabinet Member for Children, Families and Lifelong 
Learning agreed to this.  
 
With regards to her first question, Fiona Davidson asked what the authority 
was doing to make sure that more disadvantaged 2 year old children were 
taking up nursey provision. The Cabinet Member for Children, Families and 
Lifelong Learning explained that targeted publicity was used along with social 
media campaigns to encourage take up. Take up was also publicised via 
partners such as health visitors and community practitioners. With regards to 
her second question, Fiona Davidson stated that the level at which 
government had set the rates for the introduction of the new early age funding 
would not encourage as many high quality providers. She asked if the Cabinet 
Member had any concerns around this. The Cabinet Member stated that at 
this stage this had not been highlighted as a concern but would continue to 
work with the early years commissioning team to keep an eye on this.  
 

22/24 PETITIONS  [Item 4c] 
 
There were none. 
 

23/24 REPRESENTATIONS RECEIVED ON REPORTS TO BE CONSIDERED IN 
PRIVATE  [Item 4d] 
 
There were none.  
 

24/24 REPORTS FROM SELECT COMMITTEES, TASK GROUPS AND OTHER 
COMMITTEES OF THE COUNCIL  [Item 5] 
 
There were none. 
 

Page 80



138 
 

25/24 LEADER / DEPUTY LEADER / CABINET MEMBER/ STRATEGIC 
INVESTMENT BOARD DECISIONS TAKEN SINCE THE LAST CABINET 
MEETING  [Item 6] 
 
There were no decisions to note.  
 

26/24 PROVISION OF PRIMARY SCHOOL PLACES IN THE PLANNING AREA 
OF REIGATE  [Item 10] 
 
The Leader explained that Item 10 and Item 4b on the agenda would be 
considered together. The issues surrounding Reigate Priory Junior School 
had been long standing and a way forward was needed.  
 
The report was introduced by the Cabinet Member for Children, Families and 
Lifelong Learning who explained that the council desired the best outcome for 
children attending Reigate Priory Junior School which required a safe and 
productive teaching environment. The future of the school had been a 
complex issue. The council initially wanted the school to remain on the current 
site but there were a number of issues including health and safety which 
meant this option was not reasonably feasible or deliverable. The report 
explains why the school cannot remain in the current building. The 
Department for Education agrees that the current school building is not in line 
with modern learning requirements and that any re-provision or 
redevelopment of a like-for-like school on the same site is restricted. Although 
the current school building is rich in heritage and in an idyllic location, there 
are a number of restrictions with the building including accessibility issues, a 
public right of way which runs through the current site, issues with classroom 
heating, not enough toilets and roofing issues. As the building is a Grade I 
listed building there are restrictions on the building.  
 
The report recommends establishing an education working group to explore 
reorganisation for the Reigate Primary Planning Area. Alongside this, it is also 
recommended that the live planning application (Reference RE22/01796CON) 
is pursued to fully understand if building a school on a new site at Woodhatch 
Place is viable. The recommendations from the working group would be 
shared with Cabinet in the summer. 
 
There were three public questions. Kate Gray stated that the Cabinet should 
be aware that the Department of Education and Reigate and Banstead 
council have stated that reprovision of the school on the existing site was 
achievable. She asked if the council would remove the exclusion on full 
reprovision on the existing site from the working group scope and focus the 
working group on properly evaluating this option. The Cabinet Member for 
Children, Families and Lifelong Learning stated that the decision that the 
current site was not suitable for redevelopment was reached through 
extensive feasibility work conducted by the Department for Education in 
consultation with Reigate and Banstead Borough Council's planning and 
conservation teams, as well as Historic England representatives. 
 
Chris Morris stated that he did not believe that public consultation regarding 
the future of the school was fair and open, and therefore did not adhere to the 
principles of a lawful consultation. He was concerned as to why the option for 
the school to remain on the current site had been removed from the scope of 
the working group and asked if the council could review this.  
 

Page 81



139 
 

Richard Oldham attended the meeting on behalf of Justin Gibson and asked if 
Cabinet would reverse the exclusion of the current site in the scope of the 
working group, remove Woodhatch place from options A and B in the report 
recommendations and if Cabinet Members could then tender their 
resignations. 
 
The Leader stated that the report clearly set out why the current site was not 
a feasible option for the future of the school. Woodhatch Place would not be 
removed as an option as a possible school site and would be considered by 
the working group. The Leader clarified that Reigate and Banstead Borough 
Council was not responsible for providing school places. In terms of 
resignations of Cabinet Members, this would ultimately be decided at the 
ballot box in May 2025. The issue at hand was difficult but ultimately the 
current school building was unsafe and a decision needed to be progressed 
on the future of the school. This would be considered by the working group 
who would start their work imminently with a decision coming back to Cabinet 
in either June or July 2024.  
 
RESOLVED: 
 

1. That Cabinet pursue option 2, establishing a working group to explore 
reorganisation for the Reigate Primary Planning Area.  

2. That Cabinet agree the timescales and scope for the working group as 
outlined in Annex 1. 

3. That Cabinet agree to delegate authority to the Director of Land & 
Property in conjunction with the Executive Director of Children 
Families and Lifelong Learning to commission initial desk-based 
viability studies up to £0.6m. 

4. That Cabinet pursue the determination of the live planning application 
(Reference RE22/01796CON) for option 1, to establish if this is a 
viable option.  

Reasons for Decisions: 
 
As the majority of respondents to the consultation selected option 2, the 
recommendations are to continue to look for alternative solutions and pursue 
option 2 by establishing a working group to explore re-organisation options as 
set out in recommendation 1.  
 
It has not been possible to identify any potentially viable sites other than 
Woodhatch Place, or to identify a solution for Reigate Priory Junior School 
(RPJS) to remain a 600-place junior school on the current site for the reasons 
set out in Annex 2 of this report. The working group will look at re-
organisation options to provide sufficient school places in the area. 
Possibilities could include the Woodhatch site and the existing school sites, 
including the potential for a smaller school at Priority Park and other potential 
sites. The evaluation criteria are set out at Annex 1, this includes the need for 
any solution under Option 2 to be comparable in cost to Option 1. Cabinet 
Agreement for the timescales and scope of the working Group is sought 
under recommendation 2. More information about the role, functions and 
scope of the working group and timescales is available in Annex 1: Working 
Group Terms of Reference. 

Page 82



140 
 

 
Surrey County Council would not ordinarily recommend a closure of a school 
that provides quality education and continues to meet the needs of local 
pupils, however, school closure or school closure as part of an amalgamation 
may be considered by the working group, if an alternative cannot be found, or 
if a school no longer meets the needs of children.  
 
Recommendation 3 ensures relevant delegated authority to ensure sufficient 
feasibility is completed for any solution identified by the working group. There 
may be feasibility studies across multiple schools as part of the agreed option. 
The original site search for a 5FE (5 Form Entry) Junior school may be 
refreshed alongside any additional site search as part of option 2. 
 
There is no guarantee of finding viable options and this process will further 
delay a secure future for RPJS. To ensure a continuity of sufficient school 
places for children and young people in Reigate, it would be sensible and 
reasonable that, as set out in Recommendation 4, Surrey County Council 
pursues determination of the live planning application to relocate Reigate 
Priory Junior School to Woodhatch Place, (Ref RE22/01796CON), by 
submitting additional information to address the issues identified by the 
Planning and Regulatory Committee when referring it back to the applicants. 
This is in order to fully understand if this option is a viable solution.  
 
Recommendation 4 relates only to proceeding to determination of the 
planning permission. This is to keep all possible options open for 
consideration at this time and as a back-up if an alternative cannot be 
identified or if a more urgent need arises to re-locate RPJS from the current 
site. This is because of the uncertainties in making all the changes which may 
be necessary under option 2 and doing so within a reasonable time frame. 
 
A further decision will be required by Cabinet later in 2024 to determine  
how to proceed, taking into consideration the recommendations of the 
working group and the outcome of the planning application. 
 
(The decisions on this item can be called in by the Children, Families,  
Lifelong Learning & Culture Select Committee) 
 
 

27/24 PUBLIC QUESTIONS  [Item 4b] 
 
This item was considered alongside Item 10. There were three public 
questions. The questions and responses were published in a supplement to 
the agenda. 
 

28/24 CABINET MEMBER OF THE MONTH  [Item 7] 
 
The report was introduced by the Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for 
Customer and Communities who made the following points: 
 

• Your Fund Surrey (YFS) has recently had its third anniversary with 35 
large projects having been funded to-date, equating to a total of £17m 
in value. As a consequence, tangible, meaningful benefits had been 
realised for local communities, which support the County Council’s 
priorities, particularly ensuring no one is left behind. 

Page 83



141 
 

• Through Your Councillor Community Fund (YCCF) had now closed for 
the year with almost 400 funded projects across all areas of the 
County, with £1.3m having been allocated to projects to support local 
communities. Subject to the final applications being approved, it was 
anticipated that only £2-3k would be unallocated meaning Members 
had spent 99% of their allocation. 

• The Council had invested £100k into the Community Foundation for 
Surrey ‘Strategic Transformation Fund’ - which with match-funding 
created a total of up to £230k. The fund was available to VCFS 
organisations to build their capacity and develop new sustainable 
business models enabling them to become more resilient and better 
placed to face the challenges and opportunities that may arise. In 
addition, the council would also be providing the VCFS Infrastructure 
organisations with the second tranche of one off “Sparks Funding” 
(£160k) which would enable them to offer direct easy access small 
grants for community led activity across the 21 key neighbourhoods. 

• It was explained that plans were underway for the delivery of a new 
Domestic Abuse Offer in libraries – including additional training for 
staff, new and revised webpages detailing support available and 
specific events planned around the 16 Days of Action Against 
Domestic Violence.  

• The Cultural Services team had recently submitted a bid to Arts 
Council England for £400k to support the development of the cultural 
hub in the new Staines library with a focus on youth leadership and a 
programme to support progression into the creative industries sectors. 

• The Cabinet Member explained that a Customer Transformation 
Programme had been initiated and would review how the council 
organises its customer structures, systems and processes so that 
customers are better able to access what they need in more efficient 
and effective ways. 

RESOLVED: 
 
That the Cabinet Member of the Month update be noted. 
 

29/24 SECURING A COUNTY DEAL FOR SURREY  [Item 8] 
 
The report was introduced by the Leader who explained that an agreement 
had been reached with DLUHC around a Level 2 county deal. An initial 
discussion between DLUHC officials and Surrey County Council senior 
officers in January 2024, set out the powers expected to be included in a level 
2 deal, the requirements for securing a deal with government, and an 
indicative sequence of events necessary to secure a County Deal for Surrey. 
The Leader stated that a Level 2 deal would not lead to a local government 
reorganisation. Paragraph 7 of the report lists devolved powers available to 
the county council with a Level 2 deal. District and Boroughs had been 
supportive of the deal and supportive of greater devolution.  
 
 
 
 

Page 84



142 
 

RESOLVED: 
 

1. That Cabinet note the County Deal Draft Framework Agreement 
proposed by DLUHC as summarised in the Annex 1 of the report. 
 

2. That Cabinet endorse officers progressing discussions and 
negotiations with Government to agree a draft agreement with 
DLUHC based on this offer.  
 

3. That Cabinet approve the proposals to continue to engage 
stakeholders as part of agreeing a Draft Agreement and ahead of 
securing a final County Deal with government. 
 

4. That Cabinet delegate authority to the Executive Director for 
Customers, Digital and Transformation, in consultation with the 
Leader and Interim Chief Executive, to finalise the Draft Agreement 
with DLUHC.  

 
5. That Cabinet approve the proposal to bring a full report on the County 

Deal, including details of the secondary legislation required to devolve 
and confer functions to the Council, to a full Council meeting, at the 
earliest opportunity.  

 
Reasons or Decisions: 
 
The government’s Levelling Up white paper and subsequent Levelling Up and 

Regeneration Act present an opportunity for the council to pursue a County 

Deal for Surrey that will bring new powers, freedoms and flexibilities, better 

enabling the council to deliver for residents against the 2030 Community 

Vision, the council’s four strategic priorities set out in the Organisation 

Strategy 2023 - 2028 (Growing a Sustainable Economy; Tackling Health 

Inequality; Enabling a Greener Future; and Empowering Communities), and 

work towards the overarching ambition of No One Left Behind.  

 
(The decisions on this item can be called -in by the Communities, 
Environment and Highways Select Committee) 
 

30/24 PROMOTING AND SUPPORTING SUSTAINABLE ECONOMIC GROWTH 
IN SURREY (LEP INTEGRATION)  [Item 9] 
 
The Cabinet Member for Transport, Infrastructure and Growth introduced the 
report explaining that the Government had announced changes to how 
economic growth functions would be delivered in local areas in August 2023. 
From April 2024, the Government would cease providing funding to Local 
Enterprise Partnerships (LEPs) and the functions previously held by LEPs will 
transfer to Upper Tier Local Authorities (UTLAs). In Surrey, this meant that 
most economic growth functions previously delivered by Coast to Capital LEP 
and Enterprise M3 LEP would transfer to the County Council and delivery of 
economic activity would be undertaken on a single Surrey footprint. The 
report highlights the key progress that had been made with the other UTLAs 
and LEPs on the disaggregation of programmes, funding, liabilities, and 
assets, outlines any outstanding issues, and provides more specific details on 
the implications of the latest government guidance and funding. The Cabinet 
Member listed the key functions and activity currently being delivered by LEPs 

Page 85



143 
 

which would be transferred across to UTLAs as part of the LEP transition. 
These include the Growth Hub and Careers Hub. A full list could be found at 
paragraph 4. A strong governance structure would be put in place with a 
strong focus on business representation.  
 
RESOLVED: 
 

1. That Cabinet approves the council becoming an “Accountable Body” 
from 1 April 2024 for the purposes of collaborating with government on 
an integration plan and assurance for delivery of core LEP functions 
and government programmes across Surrey.  

2. That Cabinet notes that from 1st April 2024 SCC will be recognised by 
Government as the lead for strategic economic planning and the 
delivery of economic growth functions in Surrey that were previously 
undertaken by LEPs. The new functions and responsibilities will be 
integrated within SCC’s existing economic growth function. 

3. That Cabinet notes the progress made in transitioning LEP functions 
to the County Council from April 2024, through engagement with 
stakeholders, including relevant upper tier local authorities, Enterprise 
M3 LEP and Coast to Capital LEP. 

4. That Cabinet delegates authority for concluding the work of 
transitioning LEP functions to the County Council from April 2024 to 
the Interim Executive Director for Customers and Communities and 
the council's Section 151 Officer, in conjunction with the Executive 
Director for Environment, Infrastructure and Growth, and in 
consultation with the Cabinet member for Environment, Infrastructure 
and Growth. 

 
Reasons for Decisions: 
 
To bring the significant strategic decision of the government and its 
consequent implications and opportunities to the attention of Cabinet and to 
ensure a smooth and effective approach to the transfer and integration of LEP 
functions for Surrey into the County Council.  
 
(The decisions on this item can be called -in by the Communities, 
Environment and Highways Select Committee) 
 

31/24 EARLY YEARS EXPANSION OF ENTITLEMENTS AND SCHOOLS 
WRAPAROUND PROVISION  [Item 11] 
 
The item was introduced by the Cabinet Member for Children, Families and 
Lifelong Learning who explained that the report provided a description of the 
new Early Years Entitlements and Schools wraparound provision announced 
by Government in March 2023 to be implemented over the next 2 years with 
the first new entitlement starting in April 2024. The expanded early entitlement 
would support working families and would be fully funded through the 
Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) and an additional Section 31 grant. The new 
entitlements offer exciting new opportunities to support our youngest 
residents at the earliest opportunity and to work closer with the early years 
sector. It was estimated that over the next three years the early years sector 
would need to expand by up to 12,000 places. The council would be working 
with the sector to help deliver these places.  
 
RESOLVED: 

Page 86



144 
 

 
1. That Cabinet notes the new funded entitlements for parents and the 

LA statutory duty to ensure a sufficiency of Early Years and 
Wraparound provision and the intended response to meet that 
obligation. 

2. That Cabinet notes the expansion of teams within Children, Families 
and Lifelong Learning required in order to manage the implementation 
of the new entitlements and the strategic approach adopted to assure 
alignment with council priorities. 

3. That Cabinet notes the intended grants and funding distribution 
process designed to effectively support schools and settings to deliver 
the entitlement. 

Reasons for Decisions: 
 
This is a new statutory duty that we are required to deliver and is fully funded 

by the Department for Education (DfE). 

(The decisions on this item can be called in by the Children, Families, Lifelong 

Learning & Culture Select Committee) 

32/24 LOCAL GOVERNMENT AND SOCIAL CARE OMBUDSMAN PUBLIC 
REPORT REGARDING CONCERNS ABOUT THE DELIVERY OF 
EDUCATION FOR CHILDREN WITH ADDITIONAL NEEDS AND 
DISABILITIES (SEND)  [Item 12] 
 
The Cabinet Member for Children, Families and Lifelong Learning brought to 
Members’ attention a public report which had been issued by the 
Ombudsman. In this report, the Ombudsman had found the Council to be at 
fault. The Cabinet Member gave specific details of the case explaining that 
the Council had failed to meet the statutory 20-week deadline for the 
education, health and care (EHC) needs assessment. This has been mainly 
due to a delay in obtaining advice from its educational psychology service. 
The Council accepted the Ombudsman’s recommendations and an apology 
letter and financial remedy had now been actioned. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 

1. That Cabinet considers the Ombudsman’s report and the steps that 
have been taken by the Service to address the findings;     

2. That Cabinet considers whether any other action should be taken; and    

3. That Cabinet notes that the Monitoring Officer will be bringing this 
report to the attention of all Members of the Council.   

Reasons for Decisions: 
 
There is a statutory requirement for the Monitoring Office to bring to 
Members’ attention any public report issued by the Ombudsman about the 
Council which identifies it is at fault and has caused injustice as a result.  
 
 
 

Page 87



145 
 

33/24 SURREY FIRE AND RESCUE SERVICE FIRE HOUSE AND TRAINING 
FACILITY  [Item 13] 
 
The report was introduced by the Cabinet Member for Fire, Rescue and 
Resilience who requested Cabinet approval for capital expenditure to 
redevelop the SFRS fire house and training provision and deliver a new 
facility which will be capable of providing crucial training for new staff and will 
facilitate the ongoing training of the existing operational personnel. The 
current facilities were not fit for purpose and the existing fire house and drill 
towers at this facility were reaching the end of their useful life. Parts for the 
ventilation system were no longer readily available due to this type of system 
being obsolete, requiring replacement parts to be refurbished or remade from 
second hand items. This had resulted in significant periods when the facility 
was non-operational. Redeveloping the site would also help reduce the 
Council’s carbon footprint in a facility that is currently the highest carbon 
emitting asset within the council’s estate. It was estimated that emissions 
would reduce by over 90% from the current levels. The Cabinet Member for 
Property and Waste stated that the planning application for this facility would 
be submitted in June with construction commencing in April 2025. Cabinet 
Members welcomed the redevelopment and recognised the positive impacts it 
would have on staff training and skills.  
 
RESOLVED: 
 

1. That Cabinet approves capital funding from the pipeline to redevelop 
the Surrey Fire and Rescue Service (SFRS) fire house and training 
facility and design and construct a new fire house and training facility 
on the existing site. The capital funding required to develop the new 
facilities is commercially sensitive at this time and is set out in the Part 
2 report. 

2. That Cabinet approves procurement of appropriate supply chain 
partners to deliver the design, build and fit out of the new structures in 
accordance with the Council’s Procurement and Contract Standing 
Orders. 

3. That Cabinet notes that, regarding the procurement of supply chain 
partners, the Executive Director for Environment, Infrastructure and 
Growth and the Director of Land and Property are authorised to award 
such contracts, up to +5% of the budgetary tolerance level and any 
other legal documentation required to facilitate the approvals within 
this report. 

Reasons for Decisions: 
 

• Essential capital investment is required to enable the redevelopment 

of one of the SFRS critical assets – SFRS live fire training facility.  

 

• The existing fire house and drill towers at this facility are reaching the 

end of their useful life. Parts for the ventilation system are no longer 

readily available due to this type of system being obsolete, requiring 

replacement parts to be refurbished or remade from second hand 

items. This has resulted in significant periods when the facility is non-

Page 88



146 
 

operational.  

 

• There are several significant Health and Safety (H&S) concerns 

including internal linings falling from the ceiling, insufficient smoke 

extraction and ventilation which demonstrate that the facility is no 

longer fit for purpose. 
 
(The decisions on this item can be called -in by the Communities, 
Environment and Highways Select Committee) 
 

34/24 MONTHLY BUDGET MONITORING- 2023/24 MONTH 09  [Item 14] 
 
The Cabinet Member for Finance and Resources introduced the report 
providing details of the council’s 2023/24 financial position, for revenue and 
capital budgets, as at 31st December 2023 (M9) and the expected outlook for 
the remainder of the financial year. At Month 9, the council was forecasting an 
overspend of £3.3m against the 2023/24 revenue budget, after the application 
of the contingency budget. This was a £1.5m deterioration since Month 8. The 
Cabinet Member stated that the council was in a robust financial position and 
its finances were separate to those of the district and boroughs who were 
experiencing some financial issues. The council’s reserves were healthy and 
a decision had been taken to introduce spending control measures. There 
was a slight overspend with the Capital budget which was associated with the 
agile programme and the purchase of Victoria Gate. 
 
The Leader highlighted that the overspend should be viewed against the 
council’s overall budget of £1b. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
1. That Cabinet notes the Council’s forecast revenue budget (after the 

application of the full contingency budget) and capital budget positions for 
the year. 

2. That Cabinet notes the implementation of spending controls in order to 
reduce the forecast overspend position and contain costs within the 
available budget. 

3. That Cabinet notes the quarter end Balance Sheet Indicators as set out in 
Annex 2. 

 

Reasons for Decisions: 

This report is to comply with the agreed policy of providing a monthly budget 

monitoring report to Cabinet for approval of any necessary actions. 

(The decisions on this item can be called-in by the Resources and 
Performance Select Committee) 

 

The Leader thanked the Chief Executive for all her efforts to improve the lives 
of Surrey residents since joining the council 6 years ago. The council had 
transformed under her leadership and guidance and was now in a solid 
position. Members wished the Chief Executive all the best in her new post at 
the LGA. 

Page 89



147 
 

 
35/24 EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC  [Item 15] 

 
RESOLVED: That under Section 100(A) of the Local Government Act 1972, 
the public be excluded from the meeting during consideration of the following 
items of business on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of 
exempt information under the relevant paragraphs of Part 1 of Schedule 12A 
of the Act. 
 

36/24 SFRS FIRE HOUSE AND TRAINING FACILITY  [Item 16] 
 
The Cabinet Member for Fire, Rescue and Resilience introduced a Part 2 
annex which contained information which was exempt from Access to 
Information requirements by virtue of Paragraph 3: information relating to the 
financial or business affairs of any particular person (including the authority 
holding that information). 
 
The Cabinet discussed the capital expenditure involved with this work. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 

1. That Cabinet approves capital funding of [E-02-24] from the pipeline to 
redevelop the Surrey Fire and Rescue Service (SFRS) fire house and 
training facility and design and construct a new fire house and training 
facility on the existing site.  

2. Approves procurement of appropriate supply chain partners to deliver 
the design, build and fit out of the new structures in accordance with 
Surrey County Council’s (the Council) Procurement and Contract 
Standing Orders. 

3. Notes that, regarding the procurement of supply chain partners, the 
Executive Director for Environment, Infrastructure and Growth and the 
Director of Land and Property are authorised to award such contracts, 
up to +5% of the budgetary tolerance level and any other legal 
documentation required to facilitate the approvals within this report. 

Reasons for Decisions: 
 
See Minute 33/24 
 

37/24 PUBLICITY FOR PART 2 ITEMS  [Item 17] 
 
It was agreed that non-exempt information may be made available to the 
press and public, where appropriate. 
 
 
 
 
Meeting closed at 15:39 
 _________________________ 
 Chairman 
 

Page 90


	Agenda
	2 MINUTES
	Item 2 - Appendix A - Item 5 - Leader's Statement - BUDGET Council, 6 February 2024

	9 SELECT COMMITTEE FEEDBACK ON A REFERRED MOTION: 'ADVERTISING & SPONSORSHIP POLICY'
	Item 9 - Appendix 2: Highways Service Briefing on Advertising & Sponsorship Policy Motion

	10 ESTABLISHMENT OF A JOINT HEALTH OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE (FRIMLEY PARK HOSPITAL)
	Item 10 - Annex A - JHOSC Frimley Park Draft Terms of Reference

	11 SELECT COMMITTEES' REPORT TO COUNCIL
	12 ANNUAL REPORT TO COUNCIL - MEMBER DEVELOPMENT
	Item 12 - Appendix 1 - Member Development Sessions Jul 22 - Dec 23

	13 REPORT OF THE CABINET
	14 MINUTES OF CABINET MEETINGS
	Minutes


